EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 10 31

The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC

John R.Pike
02110
100
100 Federal Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02110,
U.S.A.

03 6212 8316

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Cayman

100 4,620

2023
31 UFJ
146.20

1/258



Putnam Diversified Income Trust Cayman

DIT
DIT
DIT
100 4,620
2023 31
146.20
3.575 3.25
300 10
2023 11 2024 10 31

2/258

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC

UFJ



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

https://www._smbcnikko.co.jp/
03-5644-3111 8 40 17 10

https://www.smbc.co.jp

0120-56-3143 03-5745-5051 06-6258-0012
00 21 00
10
11
12
2005 13 2006 18

3/258



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4/258



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DIT

2017 12 19

100

2000 12 29
2005 13
2005 18
2005 22

2015 10 16

5/258



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Fr¥

T A e
F gt Py Ko A BB FTR B

TRI— Tyl

bhFh e F g A=t Fr Sl K

i e

feddb hFRE lrad=)

TRH— Py H

ISt

Ho st b b T AL -

AL TR TFax-

o rime o Zgl e — .
Pl ::1|,.1I‘ J{h‘r& =5 i E_;

(%7 FOREOER « B9,
T RESRORIT, WEL)

{77 FOSIERE)

riT 35 L ORI R

=AY —HRCE— 28

=g

HEfEa

AFe= b o AR Y b sty

AT —F AP T— R TrF bTFAF - Brrim—

FP2 b Bt=—e Y IF o (7 7 2 KL R )
(B3R R R

LM AT 5

WARAY

Bl R TITR

L] Bt il

R e R " e T

B i _
B o e T e

(4 AT R0 o B IR
HEEEILTT 8%

FAARTEa—F—L W IF ok
(&R OEIE TR

feiThs: A%

i s B

SMBC B RS
(AR SITIES AR

6/258



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

The Putnam Advisory Company,
LLC
MaplesFS Limited
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Trust Company
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Company Limited
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Distributors, Limited.
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2023
238,136,615 100.13
318,918 0.13
237,817,697
100.00
34,769
2023

45,249,950

8.14 368,475,510 5.26 238,136,615 100.13

2023

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 06.0000 09/01/2053

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 05.5000 09/01/2053

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 05.0000 09/01/2053

GNMA Gii30 TBA 04.5000 09/01/2053

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 03.0000 09/01/2053

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 02.5000 09/01/2053

GNMA Gi130 TBA 05.5000 09/01/2053

GNMA Gii30 TBA 04.0000 09/01/2053

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 03.5000 09/01/2053

10

CAS 2016-C02 1B 17.6521 09/25/2028

2023
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50/258



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023
2023
2023
8.04 1,175
1,335,204 195,207
2014 8.11 1,186
10 7.51 1,098
1,179,159 172,393
2015 7.58 1,108
11 6.64 971
587,539 85,898
(2016 ) 6.72 982
12 6.88 1,006
561,947 82,157
(2017 ) 6.97 1,019
13 6.94 1,015
508,057 74,278
2018 7.03 1,028
14 6.58 962
467,247 68,312
2019 6.68 977
15 5.90 863
439,560 64,264
2020 5.99 876
16 6.32 924
471,093 68,874
2021 6.42 939
17 5.64 825
340,195 49,737
2022 5.73 838
18 5.26 769
249,863 36,530
2023 5.35 782
5.21 762
2022 273,930 40,049
5.30 775
5.21 762
10 268,710 39,285
5.31 776
5.37 785
11 272,548 39,847
5.46 798
5.34 781
12 261,202 38,188
5.43 794
5.35 782
2023 260,227 38,045
5.45 797
5.25 768
252,980 36,986
5.34 781
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5.26 769
251,973 36,838
5.36 784
5.26 769
249,863 36,530
5.35 782
5.22 763
245,546 35,899
5.32 778
5.19 759
242,555 35,462
5.29 773
5.21 762
241,475 35,304
5.31 776
5.19 759
237,818 34,769
5.28 772
0.444 64.91
(2013 2014 30 ) 0.396 57.90
10 0.435 63.60
(2014 2015 30 ) 0.387 56.58
11 0.408 59.65
(2015 2016 30 ) 0.360 52.63
12 0.408 59.65
(2016 2017 30 ) 0.360 52.63
13 0.408 59.65
(2017 2018 30 ) 0.360 52.63
14 0.404 59.06
(2018 2019 30 ) 0.357 52.19
15 0.348 50.88
(2019 2020 30 ) 0.312 45.61
16 0.258 37.72
(2020 2021 30 ) 0.222 32.46
17 0.240 35.09
(2021 2022 30 ) 0.204 29.82
18 0.240 35.09
(2022 2023 30 ) 0.204 29.82
0.020 2.92
2022
0.017 2.49
0.020 2.92
10
0.017 2.49
0.020 2.92
11
0.017 2.49
0.020 2.92
12
0.017 2.49
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0.020 2.92
0.017 2.49
0.020 2.92
0.017 2.49
0.020 2.92
0.017 2.49
0.020 2.92
0.017 2.49
0.020 2.92
0.017 2.49
0.020 2.92
0.017 2.49
0.020 2.92
0.017 2.49
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2013 2014 30 6.54 5.85
10 2014 2015 30 1.19 1.79
11 2015 2016 30 6.26 6.70
12 2016 2017 30 10.08 9.34
13 2017 2018 30 7.03 6.20
14 2018 2019 30 0.72 0.16
15 2019 2020 30 5.43 6.02
16 2020 2021 30 11.67 11.02
17 2021 2022 30 7.04 7.65
18 2022 2023 30 2.49 3.09
L ESNES
(i) dTEEsE (%) =100 X [ 2 AV 1 ]
NAV 1
NAV NAV
HAERESLU—DOHD AR EMBEDES
o (20051108 | BIEHCHIBERENORRNIEE) ~202358RE) (o0 )
18,00 8
N | PN L O P T " RNy T e R o IRRERN: il 14
12,00 |z
10,00 110
8.00 B
.00 e - e & o FEA ()
.| ailiB o . B B
" b ;
", I, o — s
@ W N T R WA F MR E KW AE K RGN
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2013 15,900 94,550 625,570
15,900 94,550 625,570
2014 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
10
1,650 116,400 510,820
2014 (1,650) (116,400) (510, 820)
2015 30 ’ ’ ’
11
6,530 60,100 457,250
(2015 (6,530) (60,100) (457, 250)
2016 30 ’ ’ ’
12
3,990 37,850 423,390
(2016 (3,990) (37,850) (423,390)
2017 30 ’ ’ ’
13
o017 3,132,640 168,260 3,387,770
(3,132,640) (168,260) (3,387,770)
2018 30
14
2018 6,954,910 307,260 10,035,420
6,954,910 307,260 10,035,420
2019 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
15
201 9,931,980 1,040,690 18,926,710
9,931,980 1,040,690 18,926,710
2020 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
16
2020 9,154,250 3,587,690 24,493,270
9,154,250 3,587,690 24,493,270
2021 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
17
2021 1,361,070 5,880,780 19,973,560
1,361,070 5,880,780 19,973,560
2022 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
18
2022 548,870 6,909,440 13,612,990
548,870 6,909,440 13,612,990
2023 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
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2013 49,810,680 26,097,865 164,033,207
49,810,680 26,097,865 164,033,207
2014 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
10
2014 42,544,700 51,449,721 155,128,186
42,544,700 51,449,721 155,128,186
2015 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
11
2015 8,210,370 76,323,921 87,014,635
8,210,370 76,323,921 87,014,635
2016 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
12
2016 7,588,070 14,399,919 80,202,786
7,588,070 14,399,919 80,202,786
2017 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
13
po17 4,407,620 15,701,116 68,909,290
4,407,620 15,701,116 68,909,290
2018 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
14
0 8,861,870 60,047,420
2018 ) (8,861,870) (60,047,420)
2019 30 T T
15
0 5,285,895 54,761,525
2019 ) (5,285,895) (54,761,525)
2020 30 T T
16
0 5,520,480 49,241,045
2020 ) (5,520,480) (49,241,045)
2021 30 B T
17
0 9,556,560 39,684,485
2021 ) (9,556,560) (39,684,485)
2022 30 B T
18
0 6,385,355 33,299,130
2022 ) (6,385,355) (33,299, 130)
2023 30 B B
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CIMA CIMA

OFAC
EU

OFAC EU

OFAC EU

2019 30

60/258



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

61/258



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1936

62/258



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

4.0

3.0

2.0

1.0

0.0

20

63/258



30

64/258

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

17.1.9



30

10

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30

4.0

3.0

2.0

1.0

0.0

65/258



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20

66/258



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

67/258



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.5
25

68/258



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2150 12 31
2005 10
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2150 12 31
12

90
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180
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2023 30 2022 30
3,4,8,12 536,157,539 78,386,232 850,436,228 124,333,777
8 118,551,718 17,332,261 299,948,814 43,852,517
4,8 142,299 20,804
4,8 270,463 39,542 240,617 35,178
5,094,990 744,888 4,050,447 592,175
3,8 8,212,915 1,200,728 45,766,227 6,691,022
668,287,625 97,703,651 1,200,584,632 175,525,473
3,4,8,12 130,001,321 19,006,193 468,032,203 68,426,308
8,11 284,507,459 41,594,991 385,831,373 56,408,547
6 113,921 16,655 1,533,148 224,146

4,8 62,437 9,128

8,9 230,820 33,746 773,027 113,017
8,9 174,314 25,485 115,066 16,823
8 3,018,532 441,309 3,895,152 569,471
8,9 350,550 51,250 392,553 57,391
418,459,354 61,178,758 860,572,522 125,815,703
1,8 249,828,271 36,524,893 340,012,110 49,709,770
249,862,541 36,529,903 340,194,751 49,736,473
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2023 30 2022 30
3,8 17,677,392 2,584,435 21,185,084 3,097,259
(21,399) (3,129) (148,163) (21,661)

(22,476,640) (3,286,085) (47,981,134) (7.,014,842)

10 138 20 119,854 17,523
(4,820,509) (704,758) (26,824,359) (3,921,721)

9 3,981,409 582,082 5,687,426 831,502
9 118,210 17,282 151,105 22,092
9 68,640 10,035 81,107 11,858
9 379,955 55,549 374,622 54,770
9 77,839 11,380 82,500 12,062
9 94,130 13,762 88,930 13,002
9 81,926 11,978 106,030 15,502
9 (258,433) (37,783) (72,533) (10,604)
4,543,676 664,285 6,499,187 950,181

(9,364,185) (1,369,044) (33,323,546) (4,871,902)

7 (11,101,401) (1,623,025) (14,682,359) (2,146,561)
(20, 465,586) (2,992,069) (48,005,905) (7,018,463)

(20, 465,586) (2,992,069) (48,005, 905) (7,018,463)
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2022 30

1,8

340,012,110 49,709,770 471,054,227 68,868,128
(20,465,586) (2,992,069) (48,005, 905) (7,018,463)
2,968,567 434,004 8,216,002 1,201,179
(35,175,040) (5,142,591) (56,719,016) (8,292,320)
(37,511,780) (5,484,222) (34,533,198) (5,048, 754)
(69,718,253)  (10,192,809) (83,036,212)  (12,139,894)
249,828,271 36,524,893 340,012,110 49,709,770
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2023 30 2022 30
(20,465,586) (2.,992,069) (48,005, 905) (7.,018,463)

3 (25,176,133) (3.680,751) (41,316,189) (6,040,427)

7 11,101,401 1,623,025 14,682,359 2,146,561
7,498,741 1,096,316 20,131,105 2,943,168

21,399 3,129 148,163 21,661

(27,020,178) (3,950, 350) (54,360,467) (7,947,500)

8 181,397,096 26,520,255 (215,854,006)  (31,557,856)
8,11 (101,323,914)  (14,813,556) 88,873,844 12,993,356
4,8 142,299 20,804 (142,299) (20,804)
4,8 (29,846) (4,363) (240,617) (35,178)
8,9 59,248 8,662 (64,726) (9,463)
4,8 62,437 9,128 (18,897) (2,763)
4,8 (73,592) (10,759)
8,9 (542,207) (79,271) 225,937 33,032

8 (876,620) (128,162) 3,145,152 459,821
8,9 (42,003) (6,141) 55,763 8,153
3,4,8,12 314,278,689 45,947,544 46,369,778 6,779,262
3,4,8,12 __ (338,030,882) _ (49,420,115) 242,618,837 35,470,874
28,074,119 4,104,436 110,534,707 16,160,174

16,632,849 2,431,723 21,620,510 3,160,919

44,706,968 6,536,159 132,155,217 19,321,093

7 (11,101,401) (1,623,025) (14,682, 359) (2.,146,561)

6 2,968,567 434,004 9,041,521 1,321,870
(74,106,047) _ (10,834,304) (91,168,199) _ (13,328,791)

(82,238,881) _ (12,023,324) (96,809,037) _ (14,153,481)

(37,531,913) (5,487,166) 35,346,180 5,167,612

3,8 45,766,227 6,691,022 10,568,210 1,545,072
(21,399) (3,129) (148,163) (21,661)

3,8 8,212,915 1,200,728 45,766,227 6,691,022
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2023 30 2022 30

2023 30 2022 30
426 65
175,144 36,494
8,037,345 45,729,668
8,212,915 45,766,227

50,856,275 2022 27,838,861
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2023 30 2022 30
2023 30 2022 30
300 10
50,000
1,000,000 10,000,000
10,000
50,000
3.25
4.00

300 10
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2023 2022 2023 2022
30 30 30 30
45,546,625 57,049,680 1,086 1,086
221,235 316,352
(10,482,320)  (11,819,407)
35,285,540 45,546,625 1,086 1,086
2023 2022 2023 2022
30 30 30 30
39,684,485 49,241,045 19,973,560 24,493,270
548,870 1,361,070
(6,385,355) (9,556,560) (6,909, 440) (5,880,780)
33,299,130 39,684,485 13,612,990 19,973,560
2023 30
2022 100 2023 30
100
2022 100 2023 30
100 2022 100
11,121,640
0.2842 2022 14,716,098 0.2817
2022
7,271,833 0.204 2022 9,222,928
0.204 3,829,568 0.24
2022 5,459,431 0.24
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2023 30 2022 30
893,607,061 1,719,518,064
725,984,329 1,678,738,447
436 721
32,563,817 76,929,048

3,198,349,325

1,005,534,468

4,355,452 4,355,452
23,436,689 35,407,595
24,418,537 64,651,577
* 2023 30 2022 30
10
10
*% 436 87,515,625
2022 721 149,786,875
2023 30 2022 30
17,300,000
42,000,000

1,152,200,000

1,462,700,000

17,300,000

2,300,000

849,200,000 1,377,800,000
500 1,000
50,500,000 502,900,000

2,456,200,000

1,262,400,000

4,400,000 9,200,000
116,000,000
59,200,000 130,800,000
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2,300,000

111,000,000 2022 239,700,000

99

2023

30

0.81

2022

30

0.79
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2023 30 5.53 0.22 5.39
2022 30 5.40 0.17 5.39
2023 30

1,824,875 1,824,875

5,724,635 5,724,635

47,375 47,375

6,960,045 11,781,926 18,741,971

72,765 72,765

30,824 30,824

9,612 9,612

112,288 112,288

6,960,045 19,604,300 26,564,345

1,014,031 1,014,031

7,487,973 7,487,973

67,452 67,452

11,818,825 11,818,825

227,081 227,081

350 350

160,047 160,047

1,800 1,800

20,777,559 20,777,559
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5 5
47 47
374 374
426 426
2022 30
1,687,908 1,687,908
5,148 5,148
1,938,388 1,117,708 3,056,096
468,248 468,248
3,432 3,432
10,237 10,237
7,046,698 9,017,185 16,063,883
445,854 445,854
4,682 4,682
427,023 427,023
81,634 81,634
16,591 16,591
255,947 255,947
22,961 22,961
8,985,086 13,564,558 22,549,644
914,542 914,542
4,233,667 4,233,667
442 442
5,281 5,281
26,479 26,479
7,857,333 7,857,333
2,033,176 2,033,176
3,755 3,755
1,979 1,979
20,689 20,689
12,309 12,309
5,319 5,319
721,709 721,709
15,836,680 15,836,680
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43 43
16 16
65 65

2023 30

8,037,345 175,570 8,212,915
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118,551,718 118,551,718

270,463 270,463

5,094,990 5,094,990

65,680,374 41,353,960 428,828,979 294,226 536,157,539

73,988,182 41,353,960 428,828,979 124,116,504 668,287,625

284,507,459 284,507,459

113,921 113,921

62,437 62,437

195,022 2,823,510 3,018,532

230,820 230,820

174,314 174,314

350,550 350,550

2,355,637 2,795,227 124,180,858 669,599 130,001,321

2,418,074 2,990,249 127,004,368 286,046,663 418,459,354
2022 30

45,729,668 36,559 45,766,227

299,948,814 299,948,814

142,299 142,299

240,617 240,617

4,050,447 4,050,447

50,198,617 59,537,897 738,558,544 2,141,170 850,436,228

96,311,201 59,537,897 738,558,544 306,176,990 1,200,584,632

385,831,373 385,831,373

1,533,148 1,533,148

140,456 752,028 3,002,668 3,895,152

773,027 773,027

115,066 115,066

392,553 392,553

20,373,294 23,880,243 421,337,238 2,441,428 468,032,203

20,513,750 24,632,271 424,339,906 391,086,595 860,572,522
2023 30 2022 30

1,447,980 20,216
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16,229,412 21,164,868

17,677,392 21,185,084

2023 30 2022 30
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2023 30

184,985,059 4,168,061 479,134,505 668,287,625

284,507,459 284,507,459
113,921 113,921
62,437 62,437
3,018,532 3,018,532

230,820 230,820
174,314 174,314
350,550 350,550

227,081 1,067,936 128,706,304 130,001,321

285,666,582 1,067,936 131,724,836 418,459,354
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2022 30

243,838,686 148,141,143 808,604,803 1,200,584,632

187,500,581 198,330,792 385,831,373
1,533,148 1,533,148
3,895,152 3,895,152

773,027 773,027
115,066 115,066
392,553 392,553

4,457,427 8,241,624 455,333,152 468,032,203

194,771,802 206,572,416 459,228,304 860,572,522

50,856,275
2022 27,838,861

2023 2022

30 30
15.79 25.53
0.72 0.79
0.67 1.33
6.82 7.84
17.02 16.30
7.62 11.79
6.87 6.88
1486 12.12
29.63 17.42

100.00 100.00
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2023 30 2022 30

2022 30
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2,355,514 2022 24,530,796

2,168,676 2022 24,118,878

10
2023 30
49.36 258,910,491 2022
56.70 482,130,931

2023 30 2022 30
469,606,740 772,609,206
49,859,000 27,293,000
. 12,158,249 48,426,133
8,212,915 45,766,227
118,551,718 299,948,814
5,094,990 4,050,447
142,299
270,463 240,617

12
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2023 30 2022 30

12

2022 2022 28

2022
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2023

30

2,155,583 2,155,583
1,615,000 1,403,532 3,018,532
63,749 63,749
506,612 506,612
540,380 540,380
3,033,947 3,033,947
1,696,477 1,696,477
650,375 650,375
114,874 114,874
2,362,363 2,362,363
4,532,688 4,532,688
399,857 399,857
343,614 343,614
3,414,316 3,414,316
5,654,111 5,654,111
1,406,202 1,406,202
10,365,622 10,365,622
1,753,527 1,753,527
10,391,700 10,391,700
1,572,496 1,572,496
3,288,577 3,288,577
1,925,871 1,925,871
1,099,307 1,099,307
20,444,921 20,444,921
36,698,790 36,698,790
27,673,192 27,673,192
26,291,838 26,291,838
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482,725 482,725
537,666 537,666
392,296 392,296
1,171,783 1,171,783
639,104 639,104
489,527 489,527
105,735 105,735
738,405 738,405
63,091,138 63,091,138
280,417,840 280,417,840
1,615,000 517,850,740 519,465,740
294,226 294,226
7,695,586 7,695,586
8,701,987 8,701,987
16,691,799 16,691,799
536,157,539

8,037,345 8,037,345
54,898,789 54,898,789
669,599 669,599
6,631,299 6,631,299
315,519 315,519
9,033,091 9,033,091
16,649,508 16,649,508
113,351,813 113,351,813
130,001,321

49,940,015 49,940,015
859,598 859,598
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2022 30

1,220,940 1,220,940
2,160,000 1,735,152 3,895,152
243,064 243,064
1,069,675 1,069,675
2,391,549 2,391,549
1,495,172 1,495,172
821,315 821,315
214,020 214,020
2,132,012 2,132,012
5,140,262 5,140,262
581,150 581,150
359,480 359,480
4,778,995 4,778,995
3,025,839 3,025,839
5,858,662 5,858,662
12,999,060 12,999,060
4,205,999 4,205,999
15,372,737 15,372,737
7,287,681 7,287,681
4,557,357 4,557,357
2,043,115 2,043,115
657,680 657,680
1,072,442 1,072,442
31,481,483 31,481,483
84,542,511 84,542,511
34,353,329 34,353,329
42,786,050 42,786,050

8,510,569 8,510,569
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425,971 425,971
511,616 511,616
215,000 215,000
1,585,470 1,585,470
536,072 536,072
317,188 317,188
82,601 82,601
1,117,330 1,117,330
717,427 717,427
357,211 357,211
35,540,533 35,540,533
483,909,056 483,909,056
2,160,000 806,252,775 808,412,775
2,141,170 2,141,170
29,927,347 29,927,347
9,954,936 9,954,936
42,023,453 42,023,453
850,436,228

45,729,668 45,729,668
31,748,282 31,748,282
2,915,323 2,915,323
2,441,428 2,441,428
33,472,499 33,472,499
251,036 251,036
17,879,539 17,879,539
54,044,502 54,044,502
396,837,078 396,837,078
17,150,623 17,150,623

468,032,203
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22,317,934 22,317,934
2023 30 2022 30
8,037,345 45,729,668
453,356,070 760,466,521
49,859,000 27,293,000
2022
13,232,138 8,247,533
16,691,799 50,534,022
3,018,532 3,895,152
544,194,884 896,165,896
2023 30 2022 30
(37,238,728) (76,391,025)
14,740,689 28,261,728

(22,498,039) (48,129,297)
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2.00 0.60

1.60 1.00
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2,576,425
2022 3,657,950
1.80 1.20
2023 30 258,433 2022
72,533
22,500

0.02 60,000 15,000

0.10

0.10

111/258
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119,854

11
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67,500
5,000
2023 30 2022 30
300,000
75,000

138 2022

LIBOR FCA LIBOR

2021 LIBOR ICE
LIBOR 2021

LIBOR 2023 30
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2021 LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
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12
Bank of Barclays Barclays Capital Inc. BofA Securities, Citibank,
America N.A. Bank PLC (clearing broker) Inc. N.A.
2023 30
§ 5,715,427
*#
*#
*#
493 23,871 6,077
# 2,639,074 142 1,609,014
o 49,859,000
2,639,567 24,013 5,715,427 49,859,000 1,615,091
§ 5,444,964
*#
*# 50,553
*#
8,195 11
# 2,059,649 9,675 1,837,396
2,118,397 9,675 5,444,964 1,837,407
521,170 14,338 270,463 49,859,000 (222,316)
# T 521,170 49,859,000 (213,270)
14,338 270,463 (9,046)
TBA folal 1,261,430
TBA *x
50,856,275
TBA i (213,270)
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Citigroup Global Credit Suisse Deutsche Goldman Sachs HSBC Bank USA,
Markets, Inc. International Bank AG International National Association
2023 30
§
*#
* #
* # 2,202,817 1,486,510 646,358
87,407 10,359
29,924 79,015
**%
2,202,817 1,486,510 29,924 812,780 10,359
§
*#
* # 3,656,841 1,186,917 607,390
*#
16,778 3,483
35,536 83,050
3,656,841 1,186,917 35,536 707,218 3,483
(1,454,024) 299,593 (5,612) 105,562 6,876
#H T (1,429,547) 250,000
(24,477) 49,593 (5,612) 105,562 6,876
TBA folal
TBA ** 250,000
TBA il (1,429,547)
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JPMorgan Chase

JPMorgan  Merrill Lynch

Morgan Stanley &

NatWest

Bank N.A. Securities LLC International Co.International PLC Markets PLC
2023 30
§
*#
* #
* # 1,813,014 300,958 930,697
3,624 43,532
# 1,840,679 20,358
**%
1,844,303 1,813,014 300,958 994,587
§
* 4 315,519
* # 1,317,496 54,545 837,716
*#
62,437
10,140 94,121 200,066
# 1,894,231 40,609
1,904,371 1,379,933 54,545 1,287,965 200,066
(60,068) 433,081 246,413 (293,378) (200,066)
#H T 433,081 246,413 (293,378) (120,649)
(60,068) (79,417)
TBA *x 142,102
TBA ** 570,000 115,000
TBA il (294,532) (120,649)
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State Street Bank Toronto- UBS AG WestPac
and Trust Co. Dominion Bank Banking Corp.
2023 30
§ 5,715,427
*#
*#
*# 7,380,354
75,072 35,963 1,851 5,977 294,226
# 3,336 1,474,044 7,695,586
o 49,859,000
75,072 39,299 1,475,895 5,977 70,944,593
8§ 5,444,964
* 4 315,519
*# 7,711,458
*#
62,437
195,122 409 140,708 566 669,599
# 5,447 665,706 6,631,299
195,122 5,856 806,414 566 20,835,276
(120,050) 33,443 669,481 5,411 50,109,317
#H T (110,678) 669,481
(9,372) 33,443 5,411
TBA folal 1,403,532
TBA kel 680,000 1,615,000
50,856,275
TBA ** (110,678) (2,168,676)
*
**
#
#
8§
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Bank of Barclays Barclays Capital Inc. BofA Securities, Citibank,
America N.A. Bank PLC (clearing broker) Inc. N.A.
2022 30
§ 8,171,967
*#
*#
*#
13,404 18,952 124,109
7,976,338 7,849,045
> f 18,054
*x 27,293,000
8,007,796 18,952 8,171,967 27,293,000 7,973,154
§ 7,931,350
*#
*# 526,442
*#
# 1,438 104,096 5,281
9,650,726 12,236,526
# 799,438 3,611,405
10,978,044 104,096 7,931,350 15,853,212
(2,970,248) (85,144) 240,617 27,293,000 (7,880,058)
#H T (2,970,248) 27,293,000 (7,677,498)
(85,144) 240,617 (202,560)
TBA folel
TBA **
27,838,861
TBA i (3,019,481) (293,888) (7,677,498)
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Deutsche Goldman Sachs HSBC Bank USA,

Markets, Inc. International Bank AG International National Association
2022 30
§
*#
* #
* # 1,380,069 1,617,276 1,077,223
21,804 23,549
624,623 2,096,341
x4 656,256
**k
1,380,069 1,617,276 624,623 3,851,624 23,549
§
*#
*# 4,325,671 3,917,623 2,954,218
*#
# 11,012 196,546
419,757 2,863,839
# 544,395
4,325,671 3,928,635 419,757 6,558,998
(2,945,602) (2,311,359) 204,866 (2,707,374) 23,549
#H T (2,945,602) (2,311,359) 204,866 (2,675,908)
(31,466) 23,549
TBA *x
TBA ** 280,000
TBA il (3,013,198) (2,336,510) (2,675,908)
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Merrill Lynch

Morgan Stanley &

NatWest

Bank N.A. Securities LLC International Co.International PLC Markets PLC
2022 30
§
*#
* #
* # 1,967,404 244,782 1,042,168
142,299
44,973 263,925 467,356
# 2,959,257 468,923
il 1,767,537 2,303,801 1,938,388
**k
4,771,767 2,109,703 244,782 4,078,817 2,405,744
§
*# 251,036
*# 1,677,342 426,232 1,425,997
*#
# 4,455 8,070 13,300
# 3,365,012 712,040
# 4,272,845 3,228,280 3,387,403
7,642,312 1,677,342 426,232 5,625,423 3,400,703
(2,870,545) 432,361 (181,450) (1,546,606) (994,959)
#H T (2,790,999) 300,000 (181,450) (1,375,667) (861,714)
(79,546) 132,361 (170,939) (133,245)
TBA *x
TBA ** 300,000
TBA il (2,790,999) (349,856) (235,929) (1,375,667) (861,714)
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UBS AG Wells Fargo

WestPac

Bank, N.A. Banking Corp.

2022 30
§ 8,171,967
* ¢

* ¢
* 4 7,328,922
142,299
967,473 116,121 38,055 41,449 2,141,170
1,232,686 4,566,367 2,153,767 29,927,347
o 1,826,533 8,510,569
o 27,293,000
967,473 1,348,807 6,430,955 2,153,767 41,449 83,515,274
§ 7,931,350
* ¢ 251,036
* ¢ 15,253,525

* ¢
# 193,217 562,998 1,340,409 606 2,441,428
461,881 2,518,846 1,243,872 33,472,499
# 361,379 945,478 17,150,623
193,217 1,386,258 4,804,733 1,243,872 606 76,500,461
774,256 (37,451) 1,626,222 909,895 40,843 7,014,813

## 1 774,256 (37,451) 1,500,000 909,895
126,222 40,843

TBA *x 892,484 842,668 1,735,152
TBA o 1,500,000 80,000 2,160,000
27,838,861
TBA o (131,974) (24,762,622)
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Combined statements of financial position

End af each reporting period
April 30

ASSETS
Current Assets Hotes 2023 2L
Finan<ial assats at Falr value through profitor koss ® 34812 5536,157.50 SEGD436.2 18
Sales of Imvestments awaiting settiemen B 116551718 J99948 B14
Recehable forvariation margin on futures contracts 4,8 142,298
Receivable far variation margin on centrally cleaned swap contracts 48 FTiaa3 24DBIT
Interestand other recelvables 5,08k, 950 4050447
Cash and cash equivalents EN B.212.515 45,766,227
Tatal Assets GER 287625 1,200,584, 632
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Financial labilities at fad'wal _.-'-I:i'ura:-.:;.;"a profit o loss * 14812 13000831 468 032 203
Punchases of Investmants awalting settiamant B 11 284507459 #5431.373
Reddemptions of units awaiting settlement 3 113921 1.533,148
Payable for varlation margin on futures conracts 48 B2A43T
Fayable tor management kees 8,49 230,820 TTEROIT
Fayabie for custady and administrative fees 8,59 14,314 115066
Collzteral o certain darivative contracts, atvalue 8 308,532 3595152
Dl aecruced enptnies 8,9 B50.550 47 553
Total Liabilities {excluding net assets attributable to holders
af redeemable units) 418,459,154 BEQ,572,522
Met Assets attributable to helders of redeemable units at bidfask prices 1.4 5249,838,371 5340,002,110
Het Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units of the:
Putnam Doveersitied Income Trust (Cayman) LD BED 54 L340, 194,751

* Gee Note 3[a)])

I he accomypanying motes are an integral part of these financial statements

Putrnam Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) &
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Combined statements of comprehensive income (loss)

For the years ended
April 30
OPERATING INCOME/{LOSS) Maotes FLivk] 2022

Interestirom financial assets and financial tabélities ae fairvalue through profitor loss 3,8 SET6TTI02 521,185,084
Met realized and ehange in unme sz o pairy{loss) of aswors and liahiaios in foraipn curraneim (21,3040 (148 153
Nat reaiized and ehange in unneatzed gain(loss) an financiz aceers and Faamncal liailives ax fair

value through profitoe loss (22 ATE B0 (47,081 134
Wt increnss Irom payrrients by afliliates pld} 138 119854

Total operating incomae/(loss) [4,820,508) (26,824, 359)

OPERATING EXPENSES

Management lees L] 31981404

Custady foes 9 116,210

Administrative foes g 68,640 BL10T
fransfer agent fees 4 379955 R
rustee fees 9 TiH39 E2.500

At fees 9 94,130 BH.930

Lther expenses 9 BLY926 106,030

Reimbursal from Manager ] [258.433) [v2.533)

Total operating expenses 4,543,676 6,499,187
Operating profit/iless) (9,364,185) 133,323,546)
Finance Costs

[Mstributionste holders of redeemable units 7 {£1,101.400) 114, B82, 355

Profit/iLoss] after distributions [20,465,586) [48,005,905]

Increase/(Decrease] in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units
from operations 1520,465,586) [548,005,905)

T he accomypanying motes are an integral part of these financial statements

Putram Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) ]
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Combined statements of changes in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable units

Net Assets attributable to helders of redecmable units at the beginning of year

Increase/(Decrease] in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units
from operations

REDEEMABLEUNIT TRANSACTIONS
Prisgsies from units istued
Class g
Class
Value of units redeemed
lassd
lass M
Increase/[Decrease] in net assets resulting frem redeermable wnit transactions.

Met Assets attributable to helders of redeemable units at the end of year
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For the years ended
April 30
Motes 2023 2022
5340012, 110 5471,054,227
[20,465,586) (48,005,905}
2968 567 B 21600

&

he accomypanying motes are an integral part of these financial statements

125/258

[54,533,198]

(69,718,253} (&3,036,212)
1.6 5249,828,271 5340,012,110
Putnam Diversified income Trust Funds {Cayman) 10



Combined statements of cash flows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase/{Decrease} in net assets attributable to holders of redeemabls units from operations

Ad;._';lm.-rnr [n E oete n:w-"al:ing_ :-.-m!:r,-:j as) far the Final period 1ot cash ganarated Inom)f
{uisad in) oper il!il'rg_ Actyities

Interast from financial assets aned Enancial Eabilities at feir value through peofit or loss
Distriputions to the holdars of redeemable units
Het amertizatianof premiums

Exchange Eaiﬁi.ﬁ_:l:l“-?i," on cash and cash equivaients

Nt [incressslidecroase insalies of imestments awaiting settierment

Het 11:_'!::as_c."-:f:_ll_'_r._r-:§5g1 Inpurchases of | WEstmEnts e._-n!ail:ir_lg_; settlement

Mot Increasalfdecrease inreceivade lorvasrlation margln enfutunes contracts

Mt Increaselfdecrease in recevaile for variation margin oncentrally cleared swap contracts
et increase/{decrease) In payable for custody and administrative fees

Het increaseidecrease] in payable for varlation margin on futures comracts

Met ingreasesidecrease) in payable for variation marginon centrally cleared swap contracts
Net increase(decraase) inpayable for management fees

Met increaseidecreas) incollateal on certain derivative contracts, atvalue

Met ingriase flec iy in payabie lor gehies accrued Expenses

Mk ineredse] hecrease i ingncial assets at Lair value Thiough prclie o lass

Mot increase,fdecrease) in financial Gabilities at fairvalue through profitor [oss

Cash flows generated from/[used in) cperating activities

Interest received

Met cash generated from{used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
I}'ﬂlfibu:.a-vs_::a-d 0 ehve alders of redeama bike units
Procecds From redesmable units

Redamptions of redeematia units

Net cash generated fromilused i) inancing activties
Met increase/|decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginneng ol year

Evchange [gainslfinsses on cash and cash equlvients

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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For the years ended
April 30

Motes 2023 022
(520,465,585 [548,005.905)

3 (25176133 #1,316,185]

7 11303408 14,682,355
TAYEAL 20,131,105

21,393 148,163
(27,020,178) 154,360, 467)

& LEL397,0896 (215854,006)
811 1101,323.914) 8BAT3 544
4,8 142,199 [142,244)
4.8 [F848) [240.617)
8,9 56,248 [B4.7385)
48 2437 18,897)
4.8 = (73.507)
8,9 (542.207) 215937
B (876, A0 3,145,157
8,9 42,005 35,763
3,4,8, 12 314,378,689 46,369,778
3,4,8,12 (338,030,682 242 E1E83T
28,074,119 110,534,707

16532649 21,620,510

44,706,968 132,155,217

7 (11,303,408 {14,662, 350

& 2,968,557 9041521

b (74,106,047} 147,166, 154
2238881 (96,809037)

(37,531,913 35,346,180

3,8 45,766,217 10,568,210
L% 148,163

3,8 48,212,915 $45,766,227

Ihe accompanying motes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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Notes to combined financial statements 4/30/23

1. ORGANIZATION

Within the following Mates to combined finarcial staterments, references to "State Street”, if any, represent State Street Bank and Trust Compary
ard references 1o "OTCT, i ary, represent over-the-counter, Referenoes o "Tunds' net as5e15” are based on net asses of $249 828,271 at April 30,
2023, 5340,012 110 at April 30, 2022, Unless otherwise poted, the “reparting pericd” represents the period from May 1, 2022 thraugh Apil 30, 2003

Putnam Dhsersified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund [the *Master Fund”) is a series trust of the Putnam Cffshare Master Series Trust (the
“Master Trust™), pursant (o a Master 8ase Trust Deed dated August 18, 7006 and a Master First Supplemental Trust Deed dated August 18, 2005
berween FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Compary iCayman) Limited ard The Putnam Advisory Comparny, LLE [PaC). Putram
Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) {the "Feeder Fund™) is a series trust of the Putnam Offshare Feeder Series Trust (the "Feeder Trust™), pursuant
o a Feeder Base Trust Deed dated July L3, 2005 (as amended) and a Feeder Supplemental Truss Deed dated July 13, 2005 {as amended) between
MaplestS Limited and The Putram Advisory Company, LLC. The Master and Feeder Trusts are registered under the Mutual Funds Act (As Revised)
of the Cayman Islands,

The Master Fund and Feeder Fund operate as.a master/feeder fund struciure {collectively the “funds”) (each individually a “fund”) whereby
substantially all of the net assets of the Feeder Fund are imaested in units of the Master Fund. These combired financial statements are in respect
of the fumds, comprising the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund.

Separate books and records are maintaired for each fund in order to determire the net asset value for the Feeder Furd. The Feeder Fund has the
same inherent risks as the Master Furd.

The manager of the furds is The Putram Advisory Compary, LLC (the "Marager®), alimited liability company organized under the [aws of the State
of Delaware, UL5.A. State Street (the “Custodian® is the custodian of the funds.

The investment ohjective of the funds is to seek as high a level of current income as the Manager believes is consistent with preservation of
capital. The Manager will seek to achieve the funds’ objective by imvesting mainly in bonds that are securitized debt instruments ard orher
ohligations of companies and governments worldwide, are either investment-grade or below imestment-grade (high yield bonds), and have
intermediate o leng-termn mamsrities (ihree yoars of lorger,

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These combined finarcial statements have been prepared in compliance with intermational Firancial Reporting Standards (*1F 25" a5 publisked
by the international Accounting Standards Board (TASE™). The principal accounting paolicies have been applied consistently by the funds for all
perinds presented, unless otheradse stated. Prior pefiod amounts may have been reclassified to conform to the curment period presentation,

Current pericd and prioryear combined iirancial statements of the funds are presented on a combined basis a5 management considers that
the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund represent ane reporting entity given the manrer in which the entities ane maraged. References to the
finencial statements hereafter are to be considered on a combined basis. intragroup balanges and transactions, including income, expenses and
dividerds, are elirvinazed in full

The Manager makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that may affect the reported amounts of assets and Fabilities. Estimates
are pontinually evaluated and based on histonical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are belisved o be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates and differences could be material.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The fellowing is a summary of the significant accounting and reporting policies used in preparning the financial statements.

The fmancial statements bave been prepared on a bistorical cost bases, as medified by the revalwation of firancial assets and [rabilities clas-
sified at fairvalve through profit or loss, The preparation of firancial statements in conformitywith IFRS, requires management to make esti-
mates and assumplions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accom panying notes. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.,

{a) Financial instruments

{i} Classification

The Master Furd classifiesits investments bBased on bath the Master Fund's busiress model for maraging those financial assetsand

the contractual cash flow characteristics of the fimancisd assers, The portiolio of financial assets is managed and performance is cvalu-
ated en a fair value basis. The Master Fund is primarily focused on fairvalue information and uses that infermation to aseess the assets”
performance and to make decisions, The Master Fund has nof taken the option toimevocably designate ary equity securities as fairvalue
through ether comprehersive income. The contractual cash flows of the Master Fund's debt secunities are solely principal and interesr,
hewever, these securities are not keld for the purpose of collecting cortractual cash flows. The collection of contractual cash fiows is only
ircidental to achievirg the Master Fund's business maodel's objective, Corsequaontly, all investments are measured at fair value through
prafit or loss. Derivative contracts that bave a negative fairvalue are presented as liabilities at fairvalue threuph profit o loss, As such, in

Putrnam Diversified income Trust Funds {Cayman) i
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acoordance with IFRS 9, the Master Fund classifies all of its investment portfolio as finarcial assets orliabilities at fair value through profit
ar hoss.

{ii) Recognition/Derecognition

Purchases and sales of imvestments are recogrized on the trade date - the date onwhich the Master Fund commits to purchase or sell

the irvesomsent, irmesiments ane derecognize d when the rights 1o receive cash flows from the imsestments have expired and the Master
Furd has transferred substartially all risks and rewards of ownership, Secunties purchased or sold on a forward commatment and delayed
delivery basis may be settled at a future date beyord customary settiement time; interest income is accrued based on the terms of the
securiies, Losses may arise due to changes in the fair value of the underlying securities or if the counterparty does not perform under

the contract,

Purchases and sales of investments awaiting settlement represent payables for securities purchased and recetvables for securities sold
that kave been contracted for but not yet setzled or delivered an the statement of financial position date respectively. The due from
brokers balarce, it ary, is held for collection. These amounts are recognised initially at fairvalue and subsequently measured at amortised
oSk, Af each reportieg date, the Master Fund shall measure the loss allowance on ameounts due from broker at an amount equal to the
[iFetime expected credit losses if the credit sk bas increased significantly since initial recognition, if, a1 the reporang date, the credit risk
has net increased wgnificantly since initial recognition, the Master Furd shall measure the loss allowance a1 an amaunt equal to 1 2-month
expected credit losses. Significant financial difficulties of the broker, prabability that the broker will enter bankruptcy cr financial recrgani-
sation, srd defaultin payments ae all considered indeeatons that a loss allswanee may be reduired, IF the credit rask incieases 1o th point
thatitis considered o be credit impaired, interest income will be calculated based on the gross carrying amount adjusted for the boss
allowance. & significant ircrease in credit risk is defined by maragement as ary contractual payment which is more than 30 days past due.
Ary contraciual payment which is more than 30 days past due is corsidered credit impained.

(ili) Measurement

Financial assets and Financial liabitities at fairvalue through profit orloss are initially recognized at fairvalue. Transaction costs ae
recorded in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss) as part of the net realized and change in unrealized gain/fioss) on financial
assers and financual liabliges a1 fairvalue through profit or loss, Subsequent o initial recogrition, all finarcial assets at fairvalue through
prafitor loss are measured at fair valee. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'Financial Assets or Finarcial
Liabitities at fairvalue through profit o loss” catepory are presented in the Statements of comprehensive imcome {loss! in the periodin
which they arise.

Market quotations are not considered o be readily available for certain debt obligations (including shor-term imeesiments with remaining
maturitles of 60 days or less) and other imvestrments; such invesoments arevalued on the basis of valuations furnished by an independent
pricing service approved by the Manager or dealers selected by the Manager. Such services or dealers determine valuations for normal
institutional-size rading units of such securities using meshods based on marke: ransactions for comparable securities and various rela-
tionskips, generally recognized by institutional traders, between securities (which consider such factors as security prices, yields, matur.
ithes ard ratings). These securitics will gererally be categorized as Lewel 2. Certair securities may be valued on the basis of a price provided
by a single scurce. Securities quoted in foneign cumencies, if any, are translated into U5, Dollars at the current exchange rate.

The guoted market prices used for financial assets held by the Master Fund are the current bid price; the appropriate quoted market price
used for the financial Habilities is the curment asking price, however quoted marke! prices for both financial assets and financial liabilities
Peled rrany Fadll s thir: the bidfask spread,

T the extent a pricing service of dealer is urable to value a security or provides a valuation that the Manager does not believie accy-
ratety reflects the security's fair value, the security will be valued at fair value by the Manager in accordarce with peficies and procedures
approved by the Manager, Certain imeestments, including certain restricted and lliquid securities and derivaties, are also valued at fair
value fellewing procedures approved by the Marager, These valuations considersuch factons as sigrificant marke: or specific security
events such as interest rate or oredit quality changes, various relationships with other securitios, discourt rates, LS, Treasury, LS, swap
and credit yields, index levels, comendty exposures, recovery rates, sales and other multiples and resale restrictions. These securities are
chassified as Level 2 or as Level 3 depending on the priority of the significant inputs.

Imvestments in collective orgtherinvestment funds arevalued with reference to their respective net assetvalue per unit on the relevant
valuation date,

For the years ended Apnl 30, 2023 and Apal 30, 2022, no secuntics of dervatives were fairvalued by the Manager,

{b) Off-setting financial instruments

Financial assets and fiabilities are offset and the net amaunt is reported in the Staternents of financial position when there i3 a legally enforceable
right to aff-set the recognized amounts and there Is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the lfability simultaneously,

{c} Income from financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Interest is recognised on a time-proportionate basls using the effective interest methed. Interest income includes interest from cash and cash
equivalents, Interest from firarcial assets a2 fairvalue through profit or loss includes interect from debt securities, income received from collective
orather imvestment funds is recorded on the ex-date and retain the character of income as eammed by the underlying investment, All premiomes,
discounts are amortized/faccreted on a yield-to-maturity basis. The Master Fund earned certain fees in connection with its senior lnan purchasing
activities, These fees are treated as marke: discourt and are amartzed inta income in the Statemerts of comprebensive inoome ([Gss),
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{d} Distribution policy

Tistributions to the unitholders from operating profit/lloss] of the Master Furd will be distributed to unithalders of the Feeder Furd, subject to the
approval of the Manager, Income distributions, if amy, will be made monthly. Distributions to unitholders of the Feeder Fund are recognized as a
firance costin the Statements of comprebensive income (loss), Distrbutioes from capizal gains, if any, are recorded on the ex-dividend date and
paid az beast annually,

{e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprizes current deposits with barks, including foreign currendies. Cash equivalents are shart-term highly liguid imestments that are
readily comvertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes invalue, and are held for the purpose of meeting
shart-term cash needs rather than for imvestments or other purposes. Bank overdrafts, if any, ace shawn as payable to custodian in the
Staternents of financial position.

April 30
Cash and cash equivalents 1023 1022
Faweign cazh ¥76 265
IS0 cash 175,144 35,404
Cashequivalents 8,037,345 45,719 568
Total cash and cash equivalents §8,212,915 545,766,227

{f} Repurchase agreements

The Master Fund, through its custodian, receives delivery of the urderlying securities, the fair value of which at the time of purchase is required to
bein an amaunt a least equal 1o the resale price, including accrued interest, Collateral for certain tri-par iy repurchase agreemients, which totaled
450,856, 275 (2022: 527,838 851} at the end of the veporting penad, is beld at the counterparty's custadian in a segregated accaunt fof the benefit
of the Master Fund ard the counterparty. The Manager is responsible for determining that the value of these underlying securities is at all times at
least equal to the resale price, including accrued interest. In the event of default or bankruptcy by the other party to the agreement, retention of
the collateral may be subject to legal proceedings.

(g} Stripped securities

The Master Furd may imvest in stripped securities which represent a participation in securities that may be structured in classeswith rights to
receive different portions of the interest and principal. Interest-only securities receive all of the interest and principal-anty securities receive all of
the principal. f the interest-=onty Securities experience greater thar anticipated prepayments of principal, the Master Fund may fail to recoup fully
its iritial imvestment in these securizies. Conversely, principal-only securities increase in value if prepayments are greater than anticipated and
dectine if prepayments are slower than anticipated. The fair value of these securities is highly sensitive to chanpes in interest rates.

{h} Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

The accounting records of the Master Fund ard Feeder Fund are maintained in LS. Deflars, the currency in which they receive subscrip-
tions and facilitate redemptions of their redeemable units. The Manager considers the ULS. doliar the currency that most faithfully
represents the economic efect of the underlying transactions, events and conditions, The U.5. dollar is the cumency in which the funds
mieasure their performance and repoe: their results. This determiration also considers the campetitive emdronments in which the furds
are compared toother investment products, The financial statements are presented in U5 dollars.

{ii) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the unctional currency using the excharge rates prevailing at the dates of the transac-
tins, The costof cach security 15 determined usieg historical cxchange rates, Income, expenses and withkolding tases ane ransiated at
prevailing excharge rates when earned or incured. The Master Furd does notisslate that portion of realized or unrealized pains or losses
resulting from changes in the fareign exchange rate on investments from fluctuations arising from changes in the market prices of the
securites, ForeiEn exchanpe gans and bodses arisinp from trarslation and feregn exchange pains and lotses relating to cash and cazh
equivalerts are presented in the S2atements of comprehensive income {loss) as Met realized and change in unrealized gainiloss) of assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies, Translation differences on forward currency contracts and non-monetary financial assets and Fabilities
such as equaties at fairvalue through profic and less are recognized in the Satements of comprehensive income (loss) as Net realized and
ehange in unfealized gain/fioss) on fimancial assers and financial liabdises a1 fair value through profit or loss. irmestments in fareign Lecu-
rities invabee certain risks, including those related to ecoromic instability, unfavorable political developments, and currency flectuations,
net present with domestic imvestrments,

(i} TBA commitments

The Master Fund may enter into T84 {to be announced) commitments to purchase securities for a fived uniz price at a future date beyord
customary settiemnent time. Although the urit price and par amount have been established, the actual securities have not been specified.
However, itis anticlpated that the amount of the commibments will not significantly differ from the principal amount, The Master Fund halds, and
maintains until settiement date, cash o high-grade debt obligations in an amount sufficient to meet the purchase price, or the Master Fund may
enterinto offsetting contracts for the forward sale of other securities it owns. Income on the securities will not be earned until settiement date.
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The Master Fund may also enterinto TEA sale commitments to hedgeits portfolio positions, to sell mortgage-backed securnities it owns under
delayed delivery arrangements or to take a shart position in mortgage-backed securities. Proceeds of TBA sale commitments ane nat received
wntil the contractuz| settlement date, During the time a THA sale commitment isoutstanding, either equivalent deliverable securities or an offset-
ting TBA purchase commitment defiverable o or befone the sale commitment date are held as “cover” for the transas tion, or ather liquid assessin
an amaurt equal tothe national value of the TRA sale commitment are segregated. I the TRA sale commitment is closed through the acquisition
of an offsetting TBA purchase commitrment, the Master Fund realizes 2 gain or loss. If the Master Fund delivers securities under the commitment,
the Master Fund realizes a gain of a loss from the sale of the secuntios based upon the urit price established at the date the commitment was
entered ino.

TBAcommitments, which are acoounted for as purchase and sale transactions, may be considered securities themsetves, and invobve a risk of Inss
due to changes e the value of the security prior 1o the sextlerment date a5 well a5 the itk that the counterparty 1o the trassaction will not perferm
its obligatians, Counterparty risk is mitigated by having a master agreement bebween the Master Fund and the counterparty.

Uinsettled TRA commitments are valued az their fairvalue according to the procedures described under *Measurement” above, The cortract is
marked 0o market daily and the chanpe in fairvabue is recorded by the Master Furd as an urrealized gain or loss, Based on marker circumstances,
the Manager will determine whether to take defivery of the underlying securities or to dispose of the TBA commitments prior to settiement,

4. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts may serve as a component of the Master Fund's investment strategy and are utilized primarily to structure and economically
hedge imesiments (o enkance performance and reduce risk 1o the funds, or for ather imestment purposes. The Master Fund does not designate
amy derivatives as hedges for hedge accounting purposes as desoribed under IFRS 8 and hence these derivative financial instruments are classi-
fied at fair value through profit or loss. The derivative contracts that the Master Fund may hold or issue include, but are not limited to, forwards,
futures, options, certain currercy transactions and swap contracts,

The Master Fund may enter into options contracts. Losses may arise from changes in the value of the underlying instruments if there is anilliqued
secondary market for the contracts, ifinterest or exchange rates move urexpectedly or i the counterparty to the cantract is unable to perform, 1
awmitter call opton is exercised, the premium orginally received is recorded asan addition o sales proogeds. 1T awrithen put oplion is exercised,
the premium originally received is recorded as a reduction to the cost of investments, Exchange-raded aptions are valued at the last sale price
of, if rosales are reporoed, the last bid price for purchased options and the las: ask price forwritten optiors, O7C traded options are valued using
prices supplied by dealers. Options on swaps are similar to options on securities except that the premium paid or received is to buy ar grant the
right to enter into a previously agreed upon interest rateor credit default contract, Forward premium swap option contracts include premiums
that have exverded settlement dates. The delayed settlement of the premiums i factored into the dady valuation of the option contracts. In

the case of interest rate cap and floor contracts, in retum for a premivm, ongoing payments bebween two parties ane based on intenest rates
exceeding aspecified rate, in the case of a cap contract, or falling betow a specified rate in the case of a floor contract,

The Master Fund may enter into futunes contracs, Losses may arise from changes in the value of the underlying irstruments, i there is an illiquid
secondary market for the contracts, if interest or exchange rates move urexpectedly or if the counterparty to the contract is unable to perform,
With furures, there is minimal counterparty credit nisk to the furds since futures are exchange traded and the exchange’s clearinghouse, as coun-
terparty toall exchange traded futures, guarantees the futures agains: default. Risks may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements of finan-
cial position. When the contract is closed, the Master Fund reconds a realized gain or boss equal to the difference between thevalue of the contract
atthe time it was opened and the value at the time it was closed, Futures contracts are valued a1 the quated daily settlement prices established
by the exchange o which they trade. The Master Fund and the broker agree 1o exchange an amaunt of cash equal to the daily Fluctuation in the
value of the futures contract. Such receipss or payments are known as “variation margin.”

The Master Fund may ey and sell forward currency contracts, which ane agreements between two parties o buy and sell currencies at a set
price on a future date. The LS, doltar value of forward currercy comtracts is determaned wsing current forward curmency exchange rates suppliod
by a quotation service, The fairvalue of the conact will fluc tuate with changes in currency exchange rates. The contract is marked to markes
daily and the change in fair value is recorded as anunrealized gain o 055, The Master Fund records a realized gain or [oss equal to the difference
between the value of the contract at the time it was apened and the value at the time it was closed when the contract matures or by delivery of
thecurrency, The furds could be exposed 1o risk if the value of the currency changes unfavorably, if the counterparties 1o the contracts are unable
tomeet the terms of their contracts or if the Master Fund is unable to enter inta a closing position, Risks may exceed ameunts recogrized on the
Statemnents of financial position,

Thig Master Fund may enter into OTC and/or centrally clearcd interest rate swap contracts, which are arrangements between bwo parties to
excharge cash flows based on a notioral principal amount, An OTC and centrally cleaned interest rate swap can be purchased or sold witk an
upfront pramium. For OTC irterest rate swap contracts, an upfront paymant received by the Master Fund is recorded as a liability on the Master
Fund's books., An upfront payment made by the Master Fund is recorded as an asset on the Master Fund's books. OTC ard certrally cleared
interest rate swap contracts are marked to market daily bated upon quatations from an independent pricing service or market makers. Any
change is recorded as an urrealized gain or loss on OTC interest rate swaps. Daily fluctuations in the valee of centrally cleared interest rate swaps
are settled threugh a central clearing agen: ard are generally recorded Imvariation margin on the Statements of financial position and recorded
as unrealized gain or loss. Payments, including upfront premiums, recefved or made are recorded as realized gains or losses at the reset date or
the closing of the contract. Certain OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts may inciude extended effective dates, Payments related
o these swap contracts are accrued based on the terms of the contract. The furds could be exposed to credit or market rizk due to unfavorable
changes in the fluctuation of interest rates or if the counterparty defaulis, in the case of OTC interest rate contracts, or the central clearing agency
of acleanng member defaults, i the case of contrally cleartd Bberest rate swap centracts, of i respecthe obiligation 1@ perfarm under the

Futnam Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) 15

130/258



EDINETOOOO
O0O0000000000000000000000000(E15262)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

contract, The funds” maximum risk of Ioss from counterparty risk or central clearing risk is the fairvalue of the contract. This risk may be mitigazed
for OTC interest raze swap contracts by having a master retting arrangement between the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally
cleared interest rate swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation margin, There is minimal counterparty iskwith respect to centrally
cleared interess rate swap contracts due o the cleanimghouse guarantee fund ard oiher rescurces that are avadlable in the event of a clearing
member default. Risk of loss may exceed amaunts recognized on the Statements of financial position.

The Master Fund may enter into OTC and/for centrally cleared iotal return swap contracts, which are arrangements to exchange a market-lirked
return for a periodic payment, both based or a notional principal amounst, To the extent that the tooal return of the security, index or other finan-
cial measure underlying the transaction exceeds or falls short of the offsetting interest rate obligation, the Master Fund will receive a payment
from or make a payment ta the courterparty. O7C andjor centrally cleared total return swap contracts are marked to market daily based upan
quetations from an independent pricing senvioe ar market makers, Ary change is recorded a5 an unrealized gair or loss on OTC total returm swaps,
Dhaity e tuaticns in the value of centrally cleared total return swaps are cettled through a central clearing apent and are penerably recorded in
variation margin on the Statements o financial pasitior and recorded as unrealized gain or loss. Payments received or made are reconded as
realized gains or losses. Certain OTC and/for centrally cleared total return swap contracts may include extended effective dates. Payments related
o these swap contracts are accrued based on the terms of the contract. The funds could be exposed to credit or market risk due toun‘avorable
changes in the flucteation of interest rates or in the price of the urderlying security of index, the poscibility thar there is no liqued market for these
agreaments or that the counterpar ty may default on its chligation to perform. The funds’ masimum risk of loss from counterparty risk or central
clearing risk is the fairvalue of the contract. This risk may be mitgated for OTC wotal return swap contracts by having a masier netting arange-
ment between the Master Furd and the counterparty and for centrally cleared total return swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation
masgin, There is mirimal courterparty risk with respect o centrally cleared tofal returm swap contracts due to the cleaninghouse guarantee fund
ard ether resources that are available in the event of aclearing member default, Risk of les s may exceed amounts recognized on the Staterments
of financial position,

The Master Furd may enter imto OTC and/for centrally cleared credit default contracts. in OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracs, the
precection buyer typically makes a periodic strearm of payrments to-a counterparty, the protection seller, in exchange for the right to receive a
cortingent payment upon the occurrence of a credit event on the reference obligation or all other equally ranked abligations of the reference
entity, Credit events are contract specific but may include bankruptcy, failure to pay, restructuning and obligation acceleration, For O7TC credic
default contracts, an upfront payment received by the Master Fund is recorded as aliability or the Master Fund's beoks. An upfront payment
made by the Master Fund is recorded as an asset on the Master Fund's books. Centrally cleared credit defaul: contracts provide the same rights
o the pratec ion buver and seller except the payments betweon partics, pcluding upfrent premeums, ane settlod through a central cleanng apent
throuph variation margin payments. Upfront and periodic payments received or paid by the Master Fund for O7C and centrally cleared credit
defaul contracts are recorded as reallzed gairs or losses a1 the reset date or close of the contract. The O7C and centrally cleared credit default
contracts are marked o market daily based upon quotations from an independent pricing service or market makers. Any change in value of

OTC credit default contracts is recorded as an unrealized gain or loss, Daily fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared credit default contracts
are generally recorded in variation margin on the Statements of firarcial pecition and recorded a5 urrealized gain or loss, Upor the occurmence
of  credit event, the difference between the parvalue and fair value of the reference chiigation, net of any proportional amaunt of the upfront
payment, s recorded as a realized gain o loss, In addition 1o bearing the risk that the credit eventwill oocur, the furds could be exposed 1o marker
risk due to unfavorable changes in interest rates or in the price of the undertying security or index or the possibility that the Master Fund may be
wnabde to close out its position at the same time or at the same price as if it had purchased the underlying reference ohligations, In certain circum-
stances, the Master Fund may enterinto offsetting OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts which would mitigate its risk of loss, Risks

of boss may exceed amourts recognized on the Statements of financial position. The funds’ maxinurm riskof [oss from counterparty risk, sither

as the protection selleror as the protection buyer, is the fair vaue of the contract, This risk may be mitigated for OTC credit defauls contracts by
raving a master netting arrangement between the Master Furd and the counterparty ard for centrally cleared credit default contracts through
the daily exchange of variation margin, Courterparty risk is further mitigated with respect to centrally cleared credit default swap contracts

due te the clearinghouse guarantee furd and ather resources that are available in the event of a clearing member default. Where the Master

Furd i= 3 seller of protection, the maximum potential amount of future payments the Master Fund may be required to make is equal to the
notional amount,

neome related 1o swap corracts s accrued based on the terms of the contract, Recevables and payables relited 1o closed swap contracts
are presented in the Financial assets or Finarcial liabilities at fair value through profit or lass lice items on the Statements of financial position.
Realized and unreatized gains and bosses on denvative contracts are included in Net realized and change im unrealized gainfloss) on financial
assets and financial Eabilities at fairvalue threugh proficor loss.

The notioeral amounts of certain types of firandial mstruments provide a basis for comparnsan with instruments recogrized on the Statements
of financial position, but they do not necessadly indicate the amotnts of future cash flows imaobsed or the curment fairvalue of the instruments
and do not therefare indicate a furd’s exposure 1o credis or market prce risks, The dervative instrements become favorable [assets) of unfavos
able fliabilities) as a result of fluctuations of market prices or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms, The agaregate contrac tual ernotional
amount of derivative fimancial instruments.on hand, the extent towhich instruments ane favorabile or unfavorable, and thus the apgregate fadr
values of derivative finarcial assets and liabdlisies can fluctuate sigrificartly from time to dme.
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5. TAXATION

The Master Fund imvests ir securities issued by entities which are primarily domiciled in countries other than the Cayman tslands. Mary of these
foreign countries have tax laws that indicate that capital gains tases may be applicable 1o non-restdents, such as the funds, Typically, these
capital gains tawes are required to be determined on a self-assessment basis and, there‘ore, such taves may nat be deducted by the Master Fund's
brokers on awithhalding basis.

In accordance with 15 12 — Income Tawxes, the funds are required (o recognize a tax lability when it is probable that the tax laws of fareign coun-
tries require a tax [Ebility to be assessed on the funds’ capital gains sourced from such foneign country, assuming the rélevant taxing autharities
rave full knowledge of all the facts and cirumstances. The tax liahility is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant
taxation autharities using the tax laws and rates that have beer enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reperting period. There is
sometimes uncertainty about whether or mot a tax liability will ultimatety be paid by the funds. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax
lizbilities maragement considers all of the relevart facts and circumsiances available at the time which could influence the likelikocd of payment,
ircluding any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities.

At Apail 30, 2003 ard Apad 30, 2022 the furds had no tpnificant uncertain tax liabedizy positiors with respect ta foreign capital gains taxes,

6. UNIT CAPITAL AMD REDEEMABLE UNITS

Atthe end of the reparting pericds, April 30, 2003 and April 30, 2003, the Master Furd had Class 5 and Class | Linits available for issue, Unless the
Marager determires otherwise, the minimum iritial imestment for Class S s 300 Units and e minimam sulbrsegquent subscripsion shall be 10
Units, provided that the absolute minimam initial investments shall be US$50,000 ar its equivalent in the relevant subscription currency. Unless
the Manager determines otherwise, the minimum rumberof Class | Units that can be subscrbed for by way of inltial investment shall be 1000,000
Units, the minimum aggregate value of the isitial imvestment shall be LIS510 000,000 and the mimimum number of Uniss that can be subscribed for
by way of subsequent investment shall be 10,000 Units. The absolute minimum aggregate valee of the initial investment in Class | Units thas the
Marager may determine shall be LUS$50,000.

The Feeder Fund has urtimited Units of capital, Each Unit will represent an undivided beneficial interest in the Feeder Fund, MaplesFS Limited
{the “Feeder Furd Trustee”), at the direction of the Maraper, shall have the power to desigrate and issue Units from time to time by reference to a
separate Class and/for series and determine the mananer in which Units of any Class andfor series differ from Units of any other Cless and/for series,
The Feeder Fund currenthy has two Classes of Units, Class | and Class M Units, which are imdestars into Class 5 of the Master Fund, Class M Units
are sold with a maximum front-end sales charge of 3.25% and do rot pay a contingent deferred sales charge (COSC). Class J Units do rot paya
frent-end sales charge ard are subject toa COSC of up 1o 4.00% if those Urits are redeemed within five years of purchase. Unless the Marager
determires atherwise, the minimum iritial imvestment for Class 1 (COSC) and Class M Units shall be 300 Units and the minimum subseguent
subscriptions shafl be 10 Unizs,

The net assetvalue of each class is calculated by dividing the net assets atributable to the bolders of redeemable units of a particular class of
wnits, with the tetal number of autstanding redeemable units of that elass. in aceerdance vath the provisions of the funds' poverning documernts,
imvestment positiors are valued based on the bidfask market price for the purpose of determining the net asset value per urit for subscripsions
ard redempiions, Proceeds and payments for redeemable participating units issued and redeemed are <hown as movements in the Siatements
of changes in net assets attributable to bolders of redeemable participating units. The Feeder Fund generally provides its urithalders with the
right te redeem theirinterest in the Feeder Fund at any dealing date (generally daily) for cash equal to the proportiorate share of the net asser
value of the Feeder Furd. The Manager, the Transfer Apent or ather delegate of the Manager reserves the right to reject any application far Units
without siating ary reason for doing so, The Feeder Fund issues redeemable unics, which are redeemable at the holder's option and are classified
asfinarcial liabdites, The redeemable units are carried a2 the redemption amoeent that i payable at the end of the reparting pericd, I the kolder
exercises the right to put the unit back to the funds,

Unit transactions for the years were as follows:

Master Fund Class S Class|
April 30 April 30
023 M22 2023 2022
Urnets outstanding a1 beginning of year 45,545,625 57,049,680 1,086 1,086
Unitsissued 121,235 316352 - -
Unis redearmead (10,482,320) [11, 819,407 — -
Units outstanding at end of year 35,285,540 45,546,625 1,086 1,086
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Feeder Fund Class J Class M
Apell 30 April 30
2013 2011 033 2023
Units utstandiog #t beginaing of yoar 30 684,465 49,241,045 18,973,560 74,493,270
Winies ssued - - B48,670 1,361,070
Units redeemed {6,385, 355) (5,556,550 {55, 509,440 580,75,
Units outstanding at end of year 13,299,130 39,684,485 13,612,350 19,973,560

At Apail 30, 2023, 1009 of the Feeder Fund’s Class J and Class M redeemable units were held by ane unaffiliated investor (2022; 100%), At April 30,
2023, 10¥s of the Master Fund's Class S redeemable urits were hebd by the Feeder Fund (2022: 10063), AT Apnil 30, 2023, 100% of the Master Fund’s
Class | redeemable units were held by an affiliate of the Manager (2022: 100%,).

7. DISTRIBUTIONS

Mstributions to the unithalders are made at the discretion of the Maragerin an amount and at such time as determined to be appropriate. At the
end of the reporting periad, dividends paid by the Master Fund Class $ amounted to 511,121,640 0r 50,2847 per unit (2022 514,716,098 or 50,2817
per unit). At the end of the reparting period, there wene na dividends paid to Class | (2022- SNl

At the end of the reporting pericd, dividends paid by the Feeder Fund Class | and Class M amcunted to 57,271 833 or S0.304 per unit (2022:

$9,222,928 ar 50.204 per unit) and $3,829 568 or S0. per unit (2022 55,450,431 or 50,24 per uniz), respec tively, Distributions from the Feeder Fund
are recogrized in the Statements of comprebensive imcome (loss) a5 a finance cost,

8. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The funds have investment guidelines that set out their overall business strategies, their tolerance for risk and their general risk management
philosophy. The funds’ financial assets and liabilities az fair value comprise the Master Fund's financial instruments which may include:

o Irvestments including fised-income securnities, loating rate securitios and equity securities:
«  Bonds that are securitized debt instrumerts and other obligations of comparies and governments worldwide;
«  Cash and shor-term investments; and

Derivative transactions which the Master Furd enzers inmo to manage the interest rate and curnerncy risks anisie g from the Master Furd's
irvestment activities.

{a) Market price risk

While it s the intention of the Manager o implement strategies which are designed 1o mirimize potential losses, there can be ro assurance that
these strategies will be successful. itis possible that an imvestor may lose  substantial proportion or all ofits imeestment. A5 a result, eack investar
should carefully consider whether it can afford to bear the risk of investing in the funds,

The funds are exposed 1o market risk fwhich includes market price risk, foreige cusrency risk, interest rate risk), Equidity risk and credit or defauls
risk. The funds’ risk management process consists af a multi-layered and cross functional review that provides a system of checks ard balances.
The Manager performs pericdic reviews and agrees on palicies for maraging each of these risks and they are summarized below. These policies
Fave remained substantially unchanged sicce the beginring of the pericd to which these financial statements relate.

Market risk arises maindy fromuncertainty about future prices of financial instroments held. It represents the potential koss the funds might suffer
through holding market positions in the face of price movements caused by factors specific to the individual imestment or factors affecting all
imssrumenss traded in the market, The Manaper considers the asset allocation of the furds inonder 1o minimize the risk associated with particular
countries or industry sectars while cantinuing 1o fodlow the funds' imvestmen: abjective through a careful selection of securities and ather finan-
cial instruments within specified limits, Market risk can also patertially be mitigated through derivative contracts entered into by the funds. The
Marager meatures both the Master Fund's total risk as well as their risk of underperformance versus their stated benchmark.

Urder normal market conditicns, the Manager expects 1o imeest 15% - 65% of the Master Fund's net assets in each of these three sectors: LS.
and investment-prade sector - LS, government securities and imvestment-grade bonds of U5 companies, High yield sector - lower-rated
bords of LS, companics, and international secion = bonds of forcign govermments and companies, including bath investment grade and
lower-rated securities.

At the-end of the reporting period, investments in LS. securities were approximatety 1% (2007 approximately 539
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April 30

2023 022
Purchased ingesest rate swad oplon contracts [contract amaunt) 5893607, 6] $1,719,518.064
WitTen iEEesT rate SwEd oobion contracts [contract amaant) LT25,984, 779 S1BTR 36,447
Futures contracks fnumber of contracts] ™ 435 121
Forward currency contracts [contract amaunt] 532,563,817 STB5929.048
Centratiy cheared inberest rate swap-conracts (notional) 53,198,349,375 41,005,534 464
OTC b return wwap condracts (national) 54, 255,452 54,355 452
OTC credit dafault contracts - prkection purdhased [notional) 523,406 685 535,407,565
{TC credit defauit contracts - protection sodd (national) 524,518,537 564651577

* Forthe periods ended Agel 30, 2003 and April 30, 2022, the Master Fund ofd ot have aotone] expeaune, in sacess of 10%, as a pereant of net asses, Thers ane
no ot concentrations o currency risk inexcessof 109 of net assets as a result of Barward derivative nationals,
** For the reporting period, the Master Fend held LS. Treasury securities with number of contracts totaling 436 and nertlonal ameunts totaling $87,515,625 (2022
U5 Treasury secuities with numbar of controcts toaaling 771 and notionsl amounts totaling 5149.786,875),

Thevolume of activity for the reporting pericds for any derivative type that was keld during the perind is listed below and was as follows based an

an average of the holdings at the end of each fiscal quarter:

April 340

2023 2022
Punchased TRA comeniiment option contracts [Cantract amount) &= $17,300,000
Purchased currency option contracts [contract amount] - 442,000,000
Purchased swap option centracts (contract amount) 41,152, 200,000 41,462,700,000
Written TEA comanitment gtion contracts (eontract amount) i 17,300,000
Written currency ogtion contracts [Contract amount) 9= 52,300,000
Written swap option contracts foontract amount) 56455, 200,000 51,37 TAODO0
Futwres contracts [numbes of contracts] = 500 1,00d
Fowward curtency contracks [contract amaunt) 550,500,000 S502,%00,000
QOTC invtirest ratg Swap contracts [notional) G ="
Centralhy cheared inberesk rate swap contracts (notional) 52,456,200,000 51.262,400,000
QTC total return swap contracts {national) 58,400,000 59,200,000
Centra iy cleared total ratun Swap contracts [mtional) = $116,000,000
OTC credit dafaudt contracts notienal) 555,200,000 5130800000
Centratly ceared credit default contracts (notional) 52,300,000 5=

* For the reporting pariod, thens were no hotdings at the end of each fiscal quarter and the transactons were considened minmal.

** For the reporting period, average of the Futures haldings at notional values was 5111,000,000 {3022 $239.700,000).

Aggregate Value at risk

The value at Risk (VaR) ek measune estimaces the mamum expectod loss in pre-taxation profic 35 a percentage of the fund's net assets over a
given halding period for a specified confidence level. The VaRk methodology is a statistically defined, probability-based approach that takes intno
account marketvolatilites as well as risk diversification by recognizing offsetting positions and correlations between products and markets, Risks
ean be measured consistently acroes all markets and products, and fsk measures can be aggregated to anfive at a single risk number. Given the
interdependencies between market variables, the Master Fund also estimates the VaR or threshold loss that is not expected (o be exceeded at the
99tk percentile confidence lvel overa 1-day horzan, The Marager ises a prophetary multi-facios model to estimane the active risk falsa refermed
10 as tracking error) from which YaR estimates can be analytically derived. The VaR estimates presented below are point-in-time and vary cuver
time as a function of market and portfolio composition charges and are representative of activity during the pericd,

Given its reliance on historical data, vas is mest effective in estimating risk exposures in markets in which there are no sudden fundamental
ehanges or sudden shifts in market conditions, An inherent imitation of VaR s that the distribution of past changes in market risk factars may
not produce accurate predictions of future risk. Diferent Vak methodologies and distributional assumptions could produce 2 materially different
VaR. Moreover, VaR calculated for a one-day time horizon does not fully capture the market risk of positions that cannot be liquidated or offset
with hedges within one day. Chanpes in VaR between reporting periods are generally due to changes in levels of exposure, volatilities and/far
correlations among asset classes.

Futnam Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) 1%
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The table below shows the Va® of the Master Fund forboth start and end of the review period,

Partfelio Benchmark® ** Ratio®*
April 30, 2023 e na nfa
April 30, 2022 0 fa i

* 1CE Bof4 LS Treasury Bill Index
** The Master Fund uses a cash equivalent benchmark, therelore VaR of the benchmark and Vai ratioare niot relevant.

The factor risk breakdown for the Master Fund for both start and end of the review period is presented in the table below. The riek decompasition
i based on expected anrualized vodatility {1 standard deviation). Active Risk (or Esiimated Trackeng Brror "TE") measures the predicted stan-
dard deviation of the return difference between the partfolio and the benchmark using the current pasitions of each and the risk modef's factos
covariance matrix,

Partiolia Benchmark® Estimated TE
April 30, 2023 Tatal Risk 553 s 535
April 30, 2022 Total Risk 540 017 530

* ICE Bolh LS Treasury Bill Index

{b} Currency risk

Currency risk is the rigk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finamcial insorument will flectuate due to charges in foneign exclrange rates. The
risk arises on financial irstruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functicnal currency in which they are measured, A portion
of the funds” assets ane held in curmencies ather than the base currency with the resuls that the funds’ Statements of financial position can be
significantly affected by currency mavements.

Mor-base currency exposures fexcluding the notional impact of forward currency contracts) are detaited in the tables below. Monetary assets
represent investments that can be converted into monetary terms in a very short period of time, in the tables below, Non-Moretary assets include
the fair value of the Master Fund's portfolio investments. Moretary assote and liabilities inchede the unrealized appreciation and deprociation of
THA sale commitments and derivative contracts, Forward curmency contracts are entered inte as a method of reducing currency risk.

Foreign Currency Risk at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2023
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Assots Mon-Monetary Manatary Tatal
Avstradian Doliar — 51,824,575 S1LEM ETS
British Pound = 5,724 635 5,724,635
Canadian Dollas - AT 3T AT.3TH
Etrg BSE0, M5 11,781,926 18,741,978
Hew fealand Dollar - 12,765 2,165
Norweglan Krone - 3 AR 30804
Swedish Krona — 8612 9612
Stk Frane - 114,288 112,288
6,960,045 519,604,300 §26,564,345

Liabsilithes. Mon-Monetary Manetary Tatal
At alion Dollas 5— 51,004,031 51,014,081
British Found = TAETST3 TASLATS
Canadian Dollar — BT A4S 67,457
Eurgy - 11,B18,E25 11,838,825
Jmpanese Yen - 227081 121081
Morwegian Kromne — 350 350
Sweclish Krona - 160,047 160,047
Swviss Franc - 1400 1,600
i— 420,777,559 520,777,559

Currency Mon-Monetary Manetary Tatal
Canadian Dollar - 5 55
Crech Koruna - A7 47
Eurey - 3rd T4
§— 5426 $426
Putrnam Diversified income Trust Funds {Cayman) 0
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Foreign Currency Risk at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2022

ASSERS Mon-Monetary Manetary Tatal
Austraiian Dollar §— $LBAT 508 $1687 808
Brazlan Real - 5,148 5,148
British Found 1,956,355 L117.708 356,056
Canadian Datlar - AERMA 4R 240
Chilean Peso - 3432 3,432
Crech Karuna - 10,237 10237
Eurey 7,045,608 0,017,185 16,063,863
JEpanese Yan - 445,854 445 B54
Mexican Peda - 4582 4 B2
Ny Featand Dollar £17023 47033
Norwegian Kione = B1A34 BILE3L
Polish Tloty - 16,39 16,591
Swedish Brona — 255947 255,947
Swlgs Frane — 22 961 22561
48,985 086 £13,564,558 422,549,644

Liabilities. Noen-Monetary Manetary Tatal
Austratian Dollas s— 5934, 542 4914,542
British Pound 4233667 4,233567
Canadian Dallar - LY a4z
Chilean Péeso - 5481 58l
Crech Komnna - 25479 26479
Eurer - T,E57. 331 T.A5T,333
JEpaness Yan - 2033176 2033 176
Meslcan Paso - 3755 3,155
Mew featand Dallar - 15M Lsm
Marwagian Keone - J0GEa 20,689
Polish foty - 12,30 12,308
Swedish Krona o 5319 5319
Swviss Franc - T8 121,704
= $15,836,680 515,836,680

Currency Non-Monetary Manetary Tatal
Canadian Dallas §— b 56
Crech Koruna - 43 43
Ewro - 16 16
5— 565 5635

{c} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markes
interest rates, The risk arises on financial instruments whose fairvabue or futune cash flows are affected by changes in inténest rates. Short-tanm securi-
ties are less sensitive to intenest rate changes than longer-term sacurities, but they also usually offer [cwer yields, A portion of the Master Fund's finan-
cial assets and liabilities are debt instruments with floating interest rates, which, in the Manager's opinion, are generadly bess sensithve to interest rate
changes but may decline in value if their interes: rates do not rise as much, or as quickly as interest rates in general. Conversaly, floasing rate instru-
mentswill not generally increase in value If interest rates decline. Changes in interest rates will aiso affect the amount of interest income the Master
Furd eams on its floating rate investments,

High yield securities risk

Thie Master Fund imests in fised income securities eated Baas or lower by Moody's or BEE- or lower by 585 (commaonky known as “junk” or “high
yield” bordsh, These securities are considered speculative and, while gererally providing greater intome than mvestiment in bigher-rated securities,
imaohve greater risk of principal and income (including the possibility of default or bankrupicy of the issuers of such securities) and may involve greater
volasdliny of price (especially during penicds of economic unceriainty or change) than securities in the kigher rating categornies. Because yields vary
owver time, nospecific level of income can ever be assured. These lower-rated, high yielding fixed income securities pererally tend ta reflect ecanomic
changes tand the outook for economic growth], shortterm corporate ard industry developments and the markes's perception of their credit quality
{especially during times of adverse publicizy) to a greater extent than higher-rated securities which react primarily o fluctuationsin the gereral level

Futnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) i
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of interest rates (2though these lowar rated fived income sacurities are 2lso afected by changes in interest rates), in the past, economic down-
TS or an increase in interest rates have, under certain circumstances, caused a bigher ircidence of default by the issuers of these securities ard
may fo soin the future, especially in the case of highty leveraped issuers,

Payment risk

The issuers of debt securitics keld by the Mazter Fund may be able tocall a bond or prepay principal due on the securities, particularly during
periods of declining interest rates. The Master Fund may rat be able to reinvest that principal a: attractive rates, reducing income to the Master
Furd, and the Master Fuetd may bose any premiom paid, The Master Fund would Mo lose the benefit of falling intenest rates on price of the prepaid
bond. On the other hand, rising interest rates may cause prepayments to ccour at siower than expected rates. This effectively lengthens the
maturities of the affected securities, making them mare sensitive to interest rate changes and the Master Fund's net asset value more volatile.
Securities subject to prepayrment risk generally offer less patential for gains when interest rates decline, and may offer greater potential for loss
wiven interest rabes nise.

The tabdes below present the interest rate profile of the Statements of financlal position categorized by maturizy dates.

Interest Rate Risk April 30, 2023
HNon-interest

Less than 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years bearing Tatal
Assots
Cashand cash equivalents 35,037,345 5 G 5175570 58,202,915
salesnriuws:m«iam}?r"ﬁmmmm = = - 118,551,718 118,550, Ti8
Receivabie forvardation margin on centrally
clearad swag coMracts 0,463 - - - 270463
Interestand ather recevables - - - 5054 %90 5,004,950
Financhal Assets at falr value through profit
or iss B5,6A0, 3746 41,353,560 &6 HIBSTY 294,706 536,151,539
Total assets §73,988,162 541,353,960 $428,824,579 5124,116,504 SHEE, 287,615
Liabilitias
Purchases of imestments awaiting settiement - G 5= 5784 50T 450 S284,507,450
Redemptions ol units awasiting sentfemen - - - £3589 113921
Payable for variation marginan
futures contracts 62,437 - - - B2 43T
Lollzteral on certaln derhative contracts,
atvalue - 195,022 2833510 —_ 318,552
Fayabile for managemen fees - - - 230,820 230830
Payable for custody and adminftrative fees - - - 174,314 174,314
Dther accrued espenses - - - 350,550 350,550
Firvaneial Liatuiities at fair vatue through peolit
ar nds 2365697 2795217 124,150,858 E59.59% 130,001,321
Tatal liabilities (excluding net
assets attributable to holders of
redeemable units) §2,418,074 54,990,249 127,004,368 §286,046,663 418,459,354
Interest Rate Risk April 30, 2022

Non-interest

Leas than 1 year 1-5 years Owed § years bearing Total
Assots
Cashand cash equivalents: 545,709,668 §— G 536,558 545,766,127
Sales of Inwvestmignts awaiting seftiement 9948814 I AR R4
Receiviiide forvasiation mangin on
Fulures contracts 142,299 - - 142,29
Rereivalee for vasiation marginoncentrally
clzared Swap comraces 240,817 - - - Ja0.61T
Irterest and other receivables - - - 4,050,447 #050,447
Financial Assets at fair value through profy
of 1058 50,198,517 549,537,847 734,558,544 2,141,970 850,436,728
Total assets 496,311,201 559,537,897 5738,558,544 4306,176,9%0 51,200,584,632

Putrnam Diversified income Trust Funds {Caymar) rrd
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Liabilities

Purehaies of Investrents awaiting settement b= = G 4385,831,373 §365,431,373
Redemptions of units awaliting seniement - - - 1,533,148 1,533,148
{ollateral on certaln derivative contracts,

atvalue 140,456 752028 3,002 568 - 3845152
Payable for management fees. - - — T30 Tr3.027
Payable for costody and sdminitrative lees 115,066 115065
Oher accrued expendes 352,553 392,553
Fimancral Liakelities an fairvalue throwgh peofit

fr inss 20,373,202 73, BB, 243 431,331,238 a4l 428 468032, 203
Total labilities (excluding net

asgets attributable to holders af

redesmable units) 420,513,750 £24,632,271 £424,339,906 £301,086,595 $B60,572,522

Mon-base interest rate exposures {eocluding the national impact of interest rate swap coniracts) are detailed in the tables above. Interest rate
swap contracts are entered into as a method of reducing interest rate risk,

April 30
Interest Income 023 2022
Cashand cash equivalents 41,447 980 520,216
Dbt securities:
At fair valul:'tl‘rﬂu@ arolil o lods 15,220412 21,164 BEE
Tatal SAT,677,392 521,185,084

* The Master Fund had no intevest income frorn investments in affillated issuers for the periods ending April 30, 2033 and 2032,

{d} Liquidity risk

This is the risk that the funds will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations assaciated with financial Fabilities. The main Gability of the funds

is the redemnption of any units that investors wish to sell. The Master Fund's financial instruments that include investments in OTC deriative
contracts, if any, which are noz raded in an crganized public marker, may be lliiquid. As aresulz, the Maszer Fund may not be able to promply
liquidate scane of their investments in these instruments at ar amount close to their fairvalue in order to meet their iquidity requirements or o
respond to specific events such as deterioration in the credit worthiness of any particular issuer,

To minimize or mitigate the effect of iquidity risk where deemed necessary, the Manager can either re-pasition the portfolic or 2djust the
allocation te ebtain a higher cancentration of more liquid and viable securities a5 detaited in the investment objective,

Pursuant to the funds’ moestment policy, the Manageris o manitor on an orgaing basis the funds' liquidity positson. Redeemable urits
are redeemed on demand at the holder's option, However, the Manager does not foreses that the contractual maturity disclosed will e
represertative of the actpal cash outflows, as kobders of these instruments typically retain them for the medium o larg-term,

Thie tabdes below analyze the funds’ assets and liabilioes into relovast maturity groupings based on the remaining pericd at the Statements of
firancial position date o the contracival maturity date, The amournisin the tables are the contractyal undiscounted cash Flowars,

Liquidity Risk April 30, 2023
Greater than
Less than § Manth 1-3Months 3 Months Tatal
Total Assets 5184,5945 059 54,168,061 5474,134,505 $E6H,I8T,E25
Liabilithes
Purchases of imestrents awaiting settiement 2E4.507,454 - - 184 507459
Redemprions of units avaiting sentbement 113,921 - - 113,521
Fayable for varlation mangin on Ritures contracts B2437 - - B2 43T
Collateral on cortain derhitive contracts, value - 3,008,532 3,018,532
Payable for manage ment fees 230,420 - - 23062
Payable for custody and administrative lees 172,304 - - 174,314
Qeher acerusd sxpenses 350,550 - - 350,550
Financzal Liabilities an fairvatue through peofitor oss 237081 LOET93E 178,706,304 130,001,321
Total Liabilities §285,666,552 $1,067,936 5131,724,836 $418,459,354
Futnarm Diverstied Income Trust Funds {Cayman) bt
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Liguidity Risk April 30, 2022
Greater than

Less than 1 Month 1-3Months 3 Months Tatal
Tatal Assets §243,838 686 148,141,143 S808,E04,E03 $1,200,584,632
Liabilities
Purchases of imestmants fwaiting settement 187,500,581 198,330,792 - 385,831,373
Redemptions of units awaiting settiement 1,533,146 - - 1533148
Collateral on certain dierivative contracts, atvalug - 3,855,152 3895152
Payabie for management fees, TIZ.087 - - 773,007
Payabie for custody and administrative fees 115,066 - - 115,065
Oieher acerusd S nes 397,553 - - 3072553
Fisancial Liakdlinies at fair value through profitor loss L AST 427 824162 255,333,152 ABENER 203
Total Liabilities 5194,771,4802 5106,572,416 54549,128,304 S860,572,522

{e) Credit risk

The furnds will be exposed to a credit risk o parties with whom they trade and will also bear the riskof settement default, The risk of defauls on
securities traded is considered minimal as delivery of securities sold is only made when the broker has received payment. #ayment is made an
a purchase when the securities heve been received by the broker. The trade will fail if elther party fails to meet its obligation.

The furds seek to mitigate theircredit risk by undertaking trarsactions with broker dealers, banks and regulated exchanges which the Manager
corsiders of high credit ratings ard that it considers to be established. Risks associated with derivative contracts, if any, imalve the pessibility
that the counterparty to the contract may default on its chligation to perform.

The fairvalue of collazeral that bas been accepted by the Master Fund related to owtstanding repurchase agreements is: 50,856,275

{2022 $27,838,B61).
The Master Fund gererally imvests in financial assets which kave a creditrating assigned by well-krown rating agencies,
Percentage of Met Assets
April 20
Rating 2023 2022
A fhan 15795 215.53%
Al ks 072 0.7%
AR &t 1.33
BEEEaa B2 TBL
BO/Ra 70 16,39
BB Thl 1179
QOCCaa and below BT .89
Unrated® 14,85 1212
Cash and net othier assets 163 i1.62
100.00 100,00

* In order ta monitar the credit quality of the *Unrated ™ unde dying dabt securities, the Manages, on the bas's of the [nternal research, prepares its own ratings for
the various instruments for which publicty avallable credit ratings are not avallable, The Manager rewiews the key financial metrics of the issue and structural
feanures of the instroments inonder tocalculate the implied ratngs for each of these inttrumams.

Credit quatities are shown 25 a percentage of the Master Fund's net assets as of April 30, 2023 and 2022, A bond rated 838 or kigher (A-3 or
higher, far short-term debt is considered investment grade. This chart reflects the highest security rating provided by one or more of Standard

& Poor's, Moody's, ard Fitch, Ratings and partfolsa credis quality will vary owver time. Cash arnd ret other assets, if any, represent the market value
weights of cash, derivatives, and short-term securities in the portfolio. Datain the chart reflects a new caloulation methodaology put into effect on

Jure 30, 2022,

The funds themsetves have not been rated by an independent rating agency.
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The credit crisis could kave animpact on the Master Furd's remaining securities if other counterparties are forced to file for bankrupscy or are
atherwise urable to perform their obligations. The funds are expesed to credit risk, whick is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay
ameourts in full when they fall due,

The funds are also exposed to counterparty credit risk on trading derivative products, cash and cash equivalents, and amounts due from brokers
ard cther receivable balarces. The funds’ macimom risk of loss from courterparty nsk, either as the protection selieror as the profection buyer,
is the fairvalue of the derivative contracts, This risk is mitigated, but not eliminated, by having a master netting amangemen: between the Master
Fund and the counterparty. Where the Master Fund is a seller of protection, the maximum potential amount of futere payments the Master Fund
may be required to make is equal o the notional amownt of the relevant derivative contract.

The Master Fund is a party to 1504 {nternational Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc) Master Apreements that povern O7C derivative and
foreign exchange contracts and Master Securities Forward Transaction Agreements that govern transactions imobing morigage-backed and
other asset-backed securities that may result in delayed delivery (Master Agreements) with certain counterparties entered into from time o tme,
The Master Agreements may contain provisions regarding, among other things, the parties' gereral obligations, representations, agreements,
collateral requirements, events of default and earty termdnation. With respect o certain counterparties, in accordance with the terms of the
Master Agreements, collateral posted to the Master Fund is beld in a segregated account by the funds’ custodian, The Master Fund's collateral is
delivered 1o the counterparty by either pledging or transforring collateral to the counterparty, Collazeral can be in the form of cash or debs secu-
rities issued by the LS. Government or related agencies or other securities as agreed to by the Master Fund ard the applicable counterparty.
Cellateral requirements are determined based on the Master Fund's net position with each courterparty. With respect to iS04 Master Agreements,
ermination events applicable to the Master Fund may accur upon a decline i the Master Fund's net assets below a specified threskald over a
certain period of time, Termination events applicable to counterparties may cotur upan adeclinein the counterparty’s long-term or short-term
credit ratings below a specified level, In each case, upon occurgence, the other party may elect o terminate early and cause settlement of all
derivative ard foreign exchange contracts cutstanding, inclutding the payment of amy losses and costs resulting from such early termination, as
reasonably determired by the terminating party. Any decision by one or more of the Master Fund's counterparties to elect early termination could
impact the Master Fued's future derivative activity.

At the close of the reporting pericd, the Master Fund had a ret liabflity positon of 52,355,514 (:022: §24,530,796) on open derivative comtracts
subject to the Master Agreements. Collateral posted by the Master Fund at pericd end for these agreements totaled 52 168616 (022 S, 118,878)
and may include amounts related o unsettled agreements,

Thie Master Fund's main oredit risk concentration is spread between debt securities and trading derivative products. Less than 10% of the fair
value of favorable contracts cutstanding are with a single issuer, with the exception of Uniform Maortgage-Backed Securities, which were valued
at5258,910,431 ora9.36% of fair value at the-end of the reporting period April 30, 2023 (2072 Uriform Mortgage-2acked Securities, which were
valued at $487, 130,931 ar 56.70% of fair value),

The funds are exposed to credit rick associated with the Custodian wha holds a porticn of the funds’ inancial assets and U5, cash balances. The
Custodian provides clearing and depositary operations for the Master Fund’s imvestment transactions, The Custodian also provides some of the
shor-torm bendirg facilities o the Master Fund. The funds were alse exposed o Custodian rigk on cash and cash equivalents that the Custedian
kas failed to treat correctly in accordance with procedures agreed to by the funds.

The maximam exposure o credit fisk as of the reporting date can be analyzed as follows at the end of each reporting periced:

April 30

Instrument Type 2023 2022
Firvaneial assets and [Fatifties ot fair value theough profit or foss comprised of:

Fimise incorme irmpestmants S4B, B0ETA0 5712.608,206
Repurchase agreements 49,855,000 21253000
Derhvative assats” 11,158,249 4B ARE,133
Cashand cash equivalents B212915 45,766,227
Sales of e stments Swaiing seisment 118,551,718 200 04E B4
Interestand other receivables 5,004 550 4050447
Recahable forvasiation mangin on futunes contracts - 142,29
Recahaine farvasiation mangin on centrally elesred Sswap contracns FTDAE3 HOELT

* Derivative assens are comprised of Tarwand contracts, OTC swap eontracts, orwand prermium swap apling contracns, punchased oations, purchasad swap
options, weitten options, and written swapoptions. The maximum credit risk onowrithen options and weitten swap options is evaluated on a security basls, based
o the value of premiumis paid on each security. The masimum credit risk on certaln derivative asseéts s mitgated as a result of the Master Fund's enforceabie

Master netting arrangerment (Hotes 8 and 12),
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The Master Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at default and boss given dedault.
Maragement considers bath kisterical analysis and farward leoking information in determining any expected credit loss. At April 30, 2003 and
April 30, 2022, all other receivables; amounts due from brokers, cash and shori-term deposits are helid with courterparties with a credis rating of
Adfha or higher and are due 1o be settled within 1 week, Maragement considers the probability of defagls to be close to 2ero as the counterpar-
ties have a strong capacity tomeet their contractual obligations in the near term. As a resullt, no loss allowance has been recognised based on
12-manth expected credit losses as amy such impairment would be wholly insignificant to the Master Fund,

State Street Bank and Trust Company had a credit ratimp issued by Moody's atyear end of Aa3 (2002: Aa3), On February 38, 7002 145 Markit Ltd
merged with S&P Glabal Inc. 557 Global inc. had a credit rating issued by Moody's at year end of A3 (2002 A3}

Senior loans are purchased or sold on a when-issued or delayed delvery basis and may be settled a maonth or more after the trade date, which
from time to time can delay the actual investment of available cash batarces; interest income is acorued based on the terms of the securities.
Sericricars can be accuired through an agent, by assiprment from another bolder of the loan, or a2 a participation interest in another holder’s
portion of the loan. When the Maszer Fund investsin a loan or participation, the funds are subject o the risk that an intermediate participant
betweer the Master Fund and the borrower will fall to meet its obligations to the Master Furd, in addition to the risk that the bosrower under the
loan may default on its obligaticns,

Pursuant to the funds’ imvestment policy, the Manager is to monitor on an angoing basss the funds’ credis position,

{f} Financial derivative instruments

The Master Fund may employ various investment techniques and instruments for imnestment purpases or for efficient portfolia managerment of
their assets for hedging against market meovernents, currency exchange, interest rate risks or otherwise, Any such instruments are used under
the conditions and within: the limits laid down by the Manager. The Master Fund utilized forwands, futures, options and swap contracts durieg the
reporting period, and any resulting gains or losses were reported in the Statements of comprehensive ircome {loss).

(g} Fair valuation estimation

Thecarnying value less impairsent provision of ather receivables and payables are assumed to approsimate their fairvalues. The fairvalue of
finanrcial liabilities for disclasure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flow at the currert market interest rate that is
available 1o the Master Furd far similar financial instruments,

Amendment to IFRS T “Financis! instrumants: Disclosare " requines the Master Fund o classify fairvalue measurements using a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used ir making the measurements.

»  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets foridentical assets or liabifities (Level 1}

«  Ieputsother thar quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for asset or liabilivy, either directly [that is, a5 prices) or indirectly
ithat is, derived from prices) (Level 2}

+  Inputs for the asset or liakility that are not based on observable market data (that is, enobservable inputs) (Level 3.

The levelir the fair value higrarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest
level input that is significant to the fairvalue measurement in its entirety, For this purpose, the sigrificance of an input is assessed against the fair
value measurement in its entirety. (f a fairvalue measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable
inpuats, that measuremant is.a Level 3 measurement, Assessing the significance of a parscularinput to the fair value measirement i its entirely
reduines udanent, corsidening factors specific to thé assot or liability.

The determination of what constituzes “abservable® requires sigrificant judgment by the funds. The funds corsider observable daza w be that
marker data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, nat proprictary, and provided by indeperdent
saunces that areactively invoheed in the relevant marker

rvestrments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within Lewel 1 include active Isted equi-
ties, enchange traded derivatives, U5, government treasury bills and certair ror-U.5, sovereign obligations, The Master Furd does not adjust the
quoted price for these instruments.

Finarcisl (nstroments that track i markers that ane not conidercd to be active but arevalued based on quoted market prices, dealer quotations
oralterrative pricing sources supported by observable inputs ane classified witkin Level 2. These include investment-grade corporate bands and
certain non-U.S. sovereign obligations, listed equities and D1C derivatives, As Level 2 imvestments include positions that are not traded in active
markets andfor are subiect to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/for non-transferability, which are generally
based on available marke: informaticon,

For financial instruments forwiich there Is no active market, the Master Fund may use internally developed models, which are usually based on
valuation methods and techriques pererally recognized as standard within the industry. tnputs for assets and liabadities that are not based an
abservahle market data are classified within Level 3,
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The following table analyzes the fairvalue hierarchy of the Master Fund's financial assets and liabilities measured at fairvalue at the end of the

reporting periad April 30, 2023,

Fair Valwe - Financial assets Lewel 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Tatal
Investment in securities:
Fiaeed Income:
Aszset-backed securities — 52155583 - 52,155,583
Collateral on certain derivative contbracts, at valws 1,615,000 1,403,532 - 3018,532
Conwertible bonds and notes
Basic materials = 63748 = 63,749
Captal goods - 5065613 - 26612
Communication servoes - 540,380 - 540,280
Conmsurmir cyclicals = 3033947 — ENECTET
Consurmis staples - L E9EATT = LE9GATT
En«e#g = 650,375 = 650,375
Financials - 114,74 - 114,874
Heath cane - 2,362,363 - 2,362,363
Technology = 4,532,688 = 4,537 688
Transportation - 9,657 - 399,857
Uhilities and poweer = 343614 = 3614
Corparate bonds and notes
Basic materials = 3414316 B 3414316
Capital goods - 5,654,111 - 54854111
Communication servioes - 1,408,202 - 1406200
Congumer cyclicals - 10,365,627 - 10,365,522
Congumer staples = 1753527 - 1T5%.527
EnerEgr - 10,391,700 - 10,561.700
Financials - 1,572,496 - 1,572,486
Heaith cane - 3, 2E8,5T7 - % EESTT
Technalogy = 1925871 = 1975871
Litilities and peower - 105,307 - L%, 307
Forelgn government and agency bonds and notes. - Hada80t - 444921
Mortgape-backed secusities
Ageney eollameralized morgane obligatont - 360598,790 - 36,598,790
Commerncial morigage-backed secudties - FaA-TESL ] - FifTE L
Residentlal mortgage-backed secutities - 26,201,838 - 76,791,838
Semor foans
Bl materials = 482725 = 483725
Capital goods - RaT656 - 531666
Communication services - 3266 - 382,796
Comsumar qv:li:au. = 1171783 = 1,171,183
Comnsurmer staples - 635,104 - 538,104
Energy - 49,517 - 489,537
Heaith case - 105,735 - 106,735
Technalogy - 738,405 - 734,405
Ehorpperm investments = E3091,138 = 3,091,138
L5, grvernmeent and agency martgage pbligations = FROAIT B0 = JED 41T 840
Tetalinvestment in securities 1,615,000 517,850,740 - 519,465,740
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Derivatives:

Farward contracts s $294,236 §— 5294296
Farward premium swap oolion contracts - 7/695,586 = /595,585
OTE Creclit defaust contracts - 8,701 987 - 8,700,587
Total derivatives — 16,691,759 — 16,691,799
Total Financial assets at fair value through profit or less 4536,157,539
Fair Valus - Financial assets Lewal 1 Level 2 Leval 3 Total
Cashegquivalents G SBO3T 345 5= SEO3T.345
Centratiy cheared interest rate Swap CoOMracts - 54,598, TAS - 54,898,789
Fair Value - Financial liabilities Lewel 1 Lewel 2 Lewel 3 Total
Derivatives:

Forward conlracts - BB, e 5= 5659, 559
Fewward O BT SWa D PN CoNEracts = 6,631, 79% = RV i
OTC Tatal return Sanp contracts - 315,519 - 315,519
OTC Credit defautt contracts - 5033080 - 2,033,051
Total derivatives = 16,649,508 = 16,649, 508
THA 32l comimitmants - 113,350,813 - 113,451,813
Tatal Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or lass £130,001,321
Fair Value - Financial lLabilities Lewel 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Tatal
Centrathy cheared intarest rate owap conMracts 5= 545940015 &= 545940015
Fuitures contracts 550,500 - - E59,598

All ether assers and labilines rot measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed are classified a5 Level 2, Befer o the Statements of
firancial position for a breakdown of assets and liahilities and to Notes 3 and 4 for a description of the waluation techniques.

The fellewing table analyses the fairvabue bierarchy of the Master Fund's financial assets and liabilities measured at fairvalue at the end of the
reporting period April 30, 2002,

Fair Value - Financial assets Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 2 Total
Investrment in securities:
Fixed Income:
Asspt-backed secunities o= 51220340 S~ 51720940
Cotiateral on cerfain derivative contracts, at valee 2. 160000 1735152 - 359,158
Convertibie bonds and notes
Capital gmds = 243,064 = 43,064
Cormmunicalion sirvipes - 1LDESETS = LOBRETS
Consumer cyclicals = 2,391,548 = 2,391,545
Consumer staples - 1,495,172 - 1,495,172
Engrgy - 821,315 - 21,315
Financials - 00 - F16030
Heaithcane = 2132012 - 213202
Technlogy = 5,140,262 - 51400067
Transportation - 581,150 - 541,150
Litilities s powesr - 550,480 = 258,480
Corporate boads and notes
Basi materials - 4 TTHS95 - 4,778,995
Capital goods - 3,005,839 - 3,025,839
Communication Sservines - 5B5HE EED - 5,B5ERED
Consumer eyclicats - 12,959,060 - 12,595,060
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Consumerstaples - 4, 05, S99 - 54,305,999
Ennf gy - 15372737 - 15,372,737
Financlals - 7,257,661 - 7,287 hE1
Healthcans - 4557357 - 4 557,357
Technology — 2,043,115 — 2043115
Transpartation - B57,680 - B5TER0
Utilities and power - LOT2 442 - VAT A42
Forelgn government and agency bonds and nates. - 31861483 - 31,481 483
Morgage-backed securities
Agensy collateralized mongage oatigations = 84,542,510 - 84,542,511
Commercial motgage-backed securities - 34,353,329 - 34,353,329
Residential mortgage- backed securities - 41786050 - 42 T86,050
Purchased swap options outstanding - 8,510,569 - E.510,569
Senior loang
Basic materials = S15971 B 155978
Capital goods - 511616 - 511,616
Commiuclication Serices - 15,000 - 215,000
Consumer cyclicals = 1,585,470 : L5B5,470
Consumer staples - 536072 - 536,072
Energy - 317188 - IITIBE
Financials - E2 a0t = B0
Hesith carg - 1,117,330 - L117.330
chhwr:sgr Tin417 TinA2T
Transpartation - 357218 - 357,211
Short-term I meestments - 35,540,533 - 35,540,533
LS. gewernsment and sgency mortgage oblipations - 4R G098 056 - 4R399 056
Total imvestrnent in securities 2,160,000 BOG,252,7T75 - 808,412,775
Derivatives:
Fotward contracts 5= 52,181,1070 5= £2,141,170
Farward premium swap aotion contracts - 13527347 - 29527347
OTC Credit default cortraces - 9954, 536 - 9,954 936
Total derivatives = 42,023 453 = 42,023,451
Tatal Financial as4ets at fair value through prafit ar loss $850,436,228
Fair Value - Financial assets Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Takal
Cash equivalents 5 545,700,668 5— 55,706,668
Centrally cheared interest rate swap comracts - 31,748,282 - 31748782
Futumes contracts 295313 - - 1915323
Falr Value - Fimancial liabilities Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Takal
Derivatives:
Farward contfacts S 52 441 A28 5— 52441 428
Forward premium swap option contracts - 33472455 - A347F 455
OTC Total raturn swap contracts - 251,036 - 251035
OTC Credit default contracts - 17,879,539 - 17 579,535
Total derivatives - 54,044,502 - 54,044,502
TBA sale commitments - 356,837,078 - 355, 837078
Wiritten swap options outstanding - 17,150,623 - 171500623
Tatal Financial liabilities at fair value through prefiter loss 548,032,203
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Fair Value - Financial liabilities Lewel 1 Level2 Level 3 Tatal
Contral by cheared intarest rane SWap conracts = 527,317,934 4— 5272317934

All other assets and Habdlites not measured at fairvalue but for which fairvalue is disclosed are classified as Level 2. Refer o the Statements of
firancial position for a breakdown of asses ard liabilitics and 1o Maotes 3 and 4 for a descrption of the valuation techriques.

Financial Assets at fairvalue through profic or loss:

April 20
2023 22
Financial assets held bor trading:
Cashequivaients o SE03T, 345 545,709,668
Dbt Sacurities 453,356,070 TEDABE, 51
Répurchase agresments 49,859 000 T 3,000
LS. treasary bills, cartificates of daposit and commescial paper
(222 L5, treasury Bilis and commerndal paper) 13,732,138 B,247,533
Dertivitives 16691799 B30
Collateral on certain derivative contracts 3,018,532 3895152
Tatal financial assets at fair value threugh profit or loss [incleding cash equivalents) 4544,194,884 4896, 165,896
April 30
023 Mz
Qeher nat changaes in fzir vaiue on financiat assers a1 fairvalue theough prolit of [oss:
Riadinad ST 238 724) &76,392.025)
Change in wheeslized 14,740,659 I8,261728
Tatal gains/ilosses) 522,498,009 G148, 129,297)

{h} Capital risk management

Thecapital of the funds is represented by the net assets attributable to halders of redeemable urits. The amount of net assets attributable ta
rolders of redeemable units can change significantly on a daily basis, as the funds are subject 1o daily subscriptions and redemptions at the
discretion of unithclders, The furds' ehjective when maraging capital is to safeguard the funds’ ability 1o continue as a going concern in arder
o provide returns for unitholders and maintain a capital bage to support the development of the investment activitios of the Master Fund. The
Marager, at i1s discrethon, may scabe down a sigrificant redemption thatit deems would matenially prejuchce the maragement of the fundsin
aceordarce with its investment objectives,

n erder to maintaie or adjust the capital structure, the funds’ policies are to perform the fellowing:

»  Moniter the level of daily subscripsions and redemptions relative 1o the assets it expects to be able to liquidate within a day and adjust the
amount of distributions {if any) the funds pay to redeemable unitholdars.

«  Redeern and fssue new uniss in accordance with the constiutional documents of the funds, whick include the ability 1o restrict redemptions
and require certain miimum hobdirgs and subscrptions.

The Manager menitors capital an the basis of the value of net assets attributable to redeemable unitholders.

9. FEES AND EXPENSES

{a) Transactions with Related parties who have significant influence

Management fees

The Manager, an affiliate of the funds, may be entitled to an annual fee of up to 2.00% for Class S Units and 0.60% for Class | Units payvable out
of the assets of the Master Fund, For the fscalvear, at the discretion of the Manager, the rmanagement fee was not assessed to Class 5 Units
associated with the Master Fund. The Manager will receive an annual fee of up fo L60% for Class | Units and 1.00% for Class M Units, the Units
associated with the Feeder Furd, per annum on the average monthly net assets of each Class of the Feeder Fund.

Putnam Diversified income Trust Funds {Caymar) 3n

145/258



EDINETOOOO
O0O0000000000000000000000000(E15262)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Distribution fees

The Manager shall pay Putnam International Distributoss, Ltd. (the Distributor), an affiliate of the funds, a fee as agreed between the Manager and
the Mstributor out of the Manager's fee, The Distributor may share its fees with other parties such as ather sub=distibuzors in such manner ard to
such extent as it sees fit from time 1o time, A the end of the reporting period, the Marager paid the Distributor 52,576,425 (2022: 53,657,350).

tis currenty expected that the total experse ratio (excluding ameortized organizational expense) for Class J Units will ros exceed 1.80% and
Class M Units will not exceed 1,20% per annum of the average monthly Net Asset Value of the Feeder Fund, As of April 30, 2023, the Manager reim-
Buirsed the furds 5258 433 (2022 572,533) for eipenses that excecded the total expense ratio above, TRe Manager ieserves the right to madify
this total expense ratio at amy (ime.

Trustee fees

Pursuant to the Master Fund Trust Deed, FirstCanbbean international Bank and Trust Compary (Cayman Limited {the Master Fund Trustee) is enti-
tled to be paid out of the assets of the Master Fund a fee of up to $22 500 per anrum subject to an annual review where the fee may be increased
fior various reascas such as inflation without Uritholder consent as long as the fees are still considered 1o be at nermal commencial rates,

Sueh feeswill accrue dadly and be paid quarterly sn arrears, The Master Fund Trustee shall be retmbursed for all reasorable cut-of-pocket
enpenses inourred by the Master Fund Trustee in relation to the Master Fund out of the Master Furnd's assets.

Pureuant to the Feeder Fund Trust Deed, MaplesFS Limited (the Feeder Furd Trustes] is entitled to be paid cut of the aseets of the Feeder Fund 2
feeof up to (02% per annum on the average daily Net AssetValue of the Feeder Fund up o 560,000 per arnum and subject toa 515,000 ménimumy
peryear. Such fees will acerue daily and be paid quarterty ir arrears. The Feeder Fund Trustee shall be reimbursed for all reasonable aut-of-pocket
expenses incurred by the Feeder Fund Trustee in relation tothe Feeder Fund cart of the Feeder Fund's assers,

{b} Transactions with Non-Related parties

Custodian fees

The Manager shall pay o State Street Bank and Trust Compary (the Custodian), out of the assets of the Master Fund, a fee of up 1o 0,109 per
arnum on the average manthly Met Asset Value of the Master Fund, accrued daity and paid monthly in arrears. The Marager shall also pay to

the Custodian, out of the assets of the Feeder Furd a fee of up 1o 0, 10% per annum on the average monthly Net Asset Value of the Feeder Fund
acerucd daily and padd monttly is arrears. The Manager shall disckarge reasonable out-al-pocke: eapenses payvable to the Custodiam cut of gach
furd'’s assets,

Sub-Accounting Agent fees

The Custodian bas appainted State Street Cayman Trust Comgpany, Ltd. (3tate Street) (the Sub-Accounting Agent) to act as sub-accounting agent
in relation to the funds, For administrative services performed by the Sub-Accounting Agent, the Manager shall pay to the Sub-Accounting Agent
out of the assets of the Master Fund a fee up to 567,500 plus 0.0030% per annum with respect to the Net Asset Value of the Master Fund. additional
manthly per queote pricing fees will apply. This fee will accrue daily and be paid monthly in arrears. The Manager shall discharge reasonable out-af-
pocket expenses payable tothe Sub-Accounting Agent out of the Masier Fund's assets, The Manager shall also pay the Sub-Accounting Agent aut
of the assets of the Feeder Fund ar admiristrative fee of approximately 55,000 per anrurm plus maonthly perquate pricieg fees. This fee isincluded
with the Custody fees on the Statements of comprehersive income {loss), and will accrue daily and be paid manthly in arrears. The Manager shall
discharge reasorable out-of-pocke? cxpenses payatde o the Sub-Accounting Apent out of the Feeder Fund's assets,

The funds may enter into expense offset arranpements with State Street wheneby State Street’s fees are reduced by credits allowed on cash
balances, For the years ended April 30, 2023 and April 30, 2022, the funds' expenses were not reduced as a result of expense offset arrangements.

Transfer Agent fees

The Manager shall pay Citibank Eurepe ple (the Transfer Agent), cat of the assetsof the funds, a fee based on the valume of transfer agent activity,
subject o a 300,000 minimum per annum on the Master Fund and a $75,000 mirimum per annum an the Feeder Fund, accrued daily and paid
manthly in arrears, The Manager shall discharge reasonable out-af-pockes expenses payable to the Transfer Agent out of each fund's assets,

Other Expenses

n addition, each respective fund bears all other expenses incidental toits operations and busiress, including, amongst athers all compliance
c0s1s and the fees of s auditors and legal advisers; custody charges; Interest and commitrent fees on loans and debt balances; any income,
withholding or other taxes; cost of communication with Urithalders and prospective ines iors,

£ach furd may be recuired te pay subscription and redemption charges in connection with investments in other imvestment comparies. Each
furd may be required 1o pay brokerage commissions in relation to portiolio ransactions,
10. PAYMENTS BY AFFILIATES

The Manager voluntarily reimbursed the Master Fund 5138 (0000 5119,854) for trading emors which occurred during the reporting period, The
reimbursement by the Manaper of such amounts had ro material impact on otal retuen.
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11. MARKET COMNDITIONS

n the rormal course of business, the Master Furd rades finarcial instruments and enters into financial transactions where risk of potential loss
ewrsts due to changes in the market {market risk) or fallure of the contracting party to the transac an o perform (eredit risk), The Master Fund may
be exposed oo additional credis risk that an institution or other entity with which the Master Furd has ursettled or open transactions will default as
discussed in previous notes,

On Juby 23, 2007, the United Kingdom's Financial Conduct Authanity ("FCAT), which regulates LIBOR, arncunced its intention 1o cease compelling
banks to provide the quetations needed o sustain LIBOR after 2021, ICE Banchmark Administration, the administrater of LIBOR, ceased publication
of mast LIB0R settings on a representative basis at the end of 7031 and is expected to cease publication of a majority of U5, dollar | 1BOR settings
on a representative basis after June 30, 2023, Inaddition, global regulators have announced that, with limited exceptions, no new LIBOR-based
contracts should be entered into after 2021.LIBOR has historically been 2 comman benchmark interest rate index used to make adjustments tovari-
able-rate loans. it Is wsed throughout global barking ard firancial industries o determine interest rates for avariety of fimancial instruments ard
bormowirg arrangements. Actions by regulators kave resulted in the establishment of alternative reference rates to LIBOR in mest major cumencies.
Varsous firancial industry groups have beer plarning for the Transifion away fram IBOR, but there are obstacles to converting certain longer-term
socurities and ransactions to rew reference rates, Markots are developieg showly and questions sround liquedity in these rates and how 1o appro-
priately adjust these rates to mitigate any economic value transfer at the time of transition remain a significant concern. Neither the effect of the
transition process nor its ultimate success can et be krown, The trarsition process might lead o increased volatiling and iliguidity im markens that
rety on LIBOR to determine interest rates. It could also lead to a reduction in the value of some LIBOR-based investments and reduce the effective-
ressof related wansactions, such as hedges, While some LIBOR-based Instruments may contemplate a scenario where LIBOR s na longer avallable
by prowiding for an alternative rate-setting methedology, not all may bave such provisions and there may be sigrificant uncertainty regarding the
effectiveness of amy such alternative methodologies. Since the usefulness of LIBOR as a benchmark could deteriorate during the transition period,
these effects coubd ocour at any time.
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12. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL AND DERIVATIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The folbowing tables summarize any derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse repunchase agreements, at the end of the reporting
periods, that are subject to an enforceable raster metting agreement or sindlar agreement. For secunties lending transactions of bomowing

ransactions associated with securities sald short, if ary, see Mote 3. For financial reporting purpases, the Master Fund does not offset financial
assets and firarcial liabdities that are subject to the master netting agreements in the Statements of financial position,

i

s gi

April 30,2023 | i3 .52 52
Ascats:

Centrally cleared interest rate swap contraces | f— . f— . LA TI540T 5—
GTC Tekal return swap contracts™ . . .

QT Credi default contracts - protection sold™ | - - - -

 Barclays Bank PLC

GTE Credit default contracts - protection purchased™ | — | = - -
Futuires congractst | — — - -
Farward currency contracts® | w93 | 23871 . - -
F::;merél:lrcm UF'INEIJIJ:IF::}'I-EDI'R"JEI';' . J.ﬁ?-":l:{ITf- . 147 .

Repitehase agreamans’ | — | — | | smpsn000
Total Assets | 52,638,567 524013 55715427 549,859,000
Liabilities: | ' '

Centrally cleaned interest rage swag contracts —] - 5,444,964 -
OFE Toral return swap contracts™ | T | — -

OTC Credit default contracts - protection sald™ | 540,553 I .

O0C Cragir defaule eontraets - protaction surchaed I [

Futures conlracts®

Forward curmenty contracts” . 8,195 I

f.':!-lw..‘"rj;.'lli"ﬂ'l'J:"'l\w.!;}ﬂ.‘.'lr"'.'p'llﬁlhi'l'l'-’u'.'l"\' l ?,-EIE‘Q,Ei? [ ‘?,E;?S- . = =
Total Liabilities R $9.675  $5.444,964 §—
Total Financial and Derivative Net Assets | 5521, I 514,338 §270,483 545,859,000
Total eallatersl received [pledged)™'t [ ssname | o | §— 440,850,000
Netamount | $—  S14338 S270.463 §—
Controted Franciol instrivments recelved (including TEA commitmants)** 51261430 . E] . 5 5
Comtroied coih coifatgra! receied ncluding TEA commitrnonial™® ] [ 5 ‘-:s &
Lincontroed colareral received . 1 I 5 & 50855 TS
Er;.lwr.\'nrﬁ.-.'m‘.'qnﬂfu:crud.’.-k; TEA commitmentst™ | 5— . 5— . S.— | .E.—

* Excludes peemiums, i any. Incledad in Findncial assers and/for Financizl fabilities an fai value through profin e loss on the Stements affinancia) position,
** included In Financial assets and/or Finandal llabilites at falr value throwgh profitor loss onthe Statements of fnandal position,
{ Additional eoilacer sl may be requied from certain browers based o individusl sgreemants,
* Comaivid By mastis netling agreement (Note B),
= Any creer-codlateralization of total Fnancial and derivative net assets i not shown Collateral may include ameounts refated o unsettied agreements,
Vinieludes eusrent diys variation mangin only a5 reported on the Statements of financizl position, which i not collateralived. CoExerat pledged fas iniial
margin on futures contracts, which i not Included in the table above, amounted to $840,793,
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Citibank, H.A.

&7

L6084

41,615,001

18397355

1,837,407
$[222,316)
S[213,270)
$[9,046)

Citigroup Glabal
Markets, Inc.

2,202 817

52,200,817

3,655,841

43,656,841
5(1,454,024)
501,429,547)

$[24,477)

Credit Sulsse
International

LA486,510

51,488,510

1,186,917

41,186,917
4299,593
5250,000

$489,593
5
$250,000
%
5

Deutsche Bank AG

2990

$39.924

35,535

435,538

§(5,612)

.

(5,612

E

ae | A |
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Goldman Sachs
HSBC Bank
USA, National
JPMorgan Chase
Bank NLA.
JPMorgan
Securithes LLC

& & £l
Gty 358 1,813,014
87407 10,359 1524
4015 LBADETS
$8132,780 £10,259 51,844,303 1,813,014
BOT, 55 1,317,485
B 43T
16,178 3483 10,140
H3050 1,694,731
£707,218 $3 443 $1,904,371 $1,379,933
£105,562 %6876 §[60,068) $433,081
S 5 5= 5423,081
5105562 56,876 4[60,068) §=
5 ¥ 5 a
% A & 570,000
% % 5 §
3 5 5 &
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Merrill Lynch

Morgan

Stanley & Co.

MatWest

Markets PLC

State Streat Bank

and Trust Co.
inion

Bank

UBS AG

‘WestPac Banking

Corp.

Tatal
§ 5 4 5 5 5 3 L5 715,437
306,958 30,697 7,360,354
43,537 75,072 35,363 1,851 5ATT 204075
0,356 3,336 1474044 7645, 585

£5 058000

$300,958 $994,567 . 475,072 433,299 1,475,895 5,977 $70,944,593
Radd QR
315,519 [ 5519
54,545 BATTIE — | 1711458
r._:ll.'__-g'_'
4,131 00086 | 195,122 405 H0TE | 566 68,5599
40, B0 5447 GE5,T06 EE3L 299
454,545 41,287,365 £300,066 £195,122 £5 856 $E06,414 $566 420,815,376
$246,413 £(293,378) ${200,068] (120,050 $33,442 $669,481 55,411 50,109,317
4246,413 4(292,378) 5120,548) $(110,678) §o= $669,881 §um
5= o §(79,417) 5(9,372) 533,443 5— 55,411
&1a2,102 5 | § % § ' 3
5115000 5 5 5 5 680,000 3
& 5 5 5 5 ] 5
5 4125 530 SILM B8] Si110,678) : 5 5

Putram Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) 35

150/258



EDINETOOOO
O0O0000000000000000000000000(E15262)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Bank of Amearica
Bank PLC
| )
(clearing
M.A.

3 § éﬁ 52

April 30, 2022

Asdets:

Centrally cleaned ilesest fate swap contracis . §— ' S | LR ITLGST | & | §—
OTC Tokal rdturn Swap n.‘:c-'ll!r.a.'rs". | | | | |

GTC Credit default contracts - protection sold™ — | = — — | .

{;'Ccred':dela-.:i:mwacts-- protection purchased™ - = — — | =

Futures contracts — — - i =

P"Dl'i'ul-?';dC;J.’:'df'li'.j:cﬂ"llf.!C[S-r | 13,44 . 1952 [ =] = 134,109
Jncnr-:'-erd:-.'-amJ;nsu\;ennatinwcnnt'acti' | 7.9?6.3543 . — ~ | = ?.-4549.3;&5
Furchased swag optons” ™ ' 8054 | : = = -
Repuschase agreements® . =] | — | 27,293,000 [ -
 Total Assets | 58,007796 | $18,952 56,071,967 527,293,000 57,973,154
Liabilities: ' ' '

Cﬂ-'ut'aii:}:!eamd niefest rate swap contracts® . = i 831,350 [ = -

0TE Tota! return swap contracts™ | = - =N =
OTC Cradit default contracts - protection sold™ 5247 - - - -
QT Cred delault contracts - protection purchased™ . = | = | — — | on
Futures contracts’ | | ] | |

Farvsnd curfency Conlrss s’ | 1.438 | 164 05 I | 5281
'I-:-:we'&:-remuﬁmnanﬂt'ﬂ'}:alﬂ'a:ti‘ . 9650,726 . = = =] 12,235,526
Written swap opbions® ' 799438 | - | | zg1ve0s
REwrs e repunchase Jgresmunts [ | [ -

Total Liabilities | $1097B,084  $104,096 57,931,350 $— 15853212
Total Financial and Derivative Net Assets | si2,ET0,288 | S(BS148 S24061T 527,293,000 07,880,058
Total collateral received (pledged) ™t | si2,a70,248 e §-  §27,293,000  S[T677.488
Netamount - ' $—  sieses  $240617  §—  $[202,560
C-:-mm'.'ﬂdf.'ﬂaw.clal-'n-s:rumenrsrm'e-'md.'tl:cﬂ.'\d.‘ﬂgrL’.»lc-:-mni-'rr.'wnrsr*'. ) §— | 5 | S—
{'c!ntrp.'.'{ﬂrq:l"rdl'ur(':.:n'r{'r;u'q-f,f,'_i.'ln'l,l.:ﬁ'ng TR&sommitrnentsl™" [ § | § s 5 | 5

Lincomtroted cofiateral recefved & & G SITH36.86L 5

Callafenal iplediged) fnchuding TEA commitmenta” . S3,059.481) . - [ o= [ 293 BRR) [ ?:-’.T.fr??.ﬂﬁ::

* Excludes promiums, dany, Incleded in Finencial assetsandfor Finamcial Rabilivies at lair value I|'II¢..E'I- froalie e |osd can the Sramerenas of financizl pogiton
* included in Financial assets and/or Financial llabilites at fair value throwegh peofit or loss onthe Statements of finandfal position,
1 Additional coEaterad muny b requensd roem cortain brooprs based on individual SRR M,
* Cosvired by masier netting agreement (Note B,
= Ay over-codlateralizati on of motal Fagncial and desvative net assens is not shown Collatesal may includs amaunts retated 1o unsemtied agresments,
¥ acludes cusfent day™s variation rn.:lrf,'n andy ¥ feporied on the Staterments of financial pasition, which i not collateraliped, Colateral pledged Ea irvitaal margin
on fstures contracts and centrally cleaned swap contracts, which & not Inclded inthe table abave, amounted to 5849810 and 53,104,495, respectively.
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Citigroup Global
Markats, Inc.

$1,380,069

$4,325,671
$(2,945 602
2,945 602

s,_

A A

Credit Sulsse

1.617,T6

51,617,276

1917623

43,020,615

$12,311,359
$l2,311,359

n

Dautsche Bank AG

6623

5624623

419757

5319757
5204, 866
$204 866
-

$
280,000

Goldman Sachs

215
2,086,341

B56.255

53,851,624

2BE3E39

544,305

%6,558,908
(2,707,374
512,675,908
${31,466

[

¥
%

$12.75,906)

HSBC Bank
U5A, Naticnal

)

523,549

G
523,549
L=
£23 540
5

[

W |
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JPMorgan
Securlthes LLC
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Merrill Lynch
Intermational

54
$ 3 E
LI6T.A04 244182
142,795
42073
2358 15T
1,767,537
54,771,767 52,109,703 5244,782
1577.342 426,730
-'.Iﬁ"_.’.
3,365,012
4272 84S
57,642,112 $1,677,342 426,232
§42,870,545 §432,361 §l181,450)
2,790,599 F300,000 $181,450)
579,545 £132,361 §—
¥ 5 E
% £300,000 4
$ 5 £
52,790 999 5[345,656 1355909
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Morgan

Stanbey & Co.

HatWest

Markets PLC

State Strect Bank

and Trust Co.
Inign

Bank

UBSAG

Wells Fargo Bank,

N.A.

‘WestPac Banking

Corp.

Tatal
% § — | 5 §- 5 & SH 371967
1k, 1648 7328942
142299
263,975 457,356 GHTATI 116,121 3R055 4] 849
b8 93 1,232 bhG 4,566,357 2,153,767 £H9IT 347
2303801 1938, 388 1,626,533 8,510,569
793,000
54,078,817 52,405,744 4967473 41,348,807 56,430,955 52,153,767 441,449 483,515,274
7931,350
151,036 - 25115
1425847 15253505
8,070 13300 193 217 551098 Ok 2441 478
T12,040 461831 4, 121 ET] 33,472,499
3,228 260 3387403 341,319 B34Ta 17,150,623
45,625,423 $3,400,703 §193,217 1,386,258 54,804,733 §1,243,872 $606 476,500,461
51,546,606 4(994,959 774,256 4(37,451 51,626,222 5909,895 540,843 57,014,813
51,375,667 5861,714 574,156 5037451 51,500,000 909,895 5=
§(170,939 £[133,245 i— = £126,222 i— 540,843
5 5 L4 A8 % 5- LE&1EGE 5% 51,735,152
¥ § 5 §- 41,500,000 SE0,000 & 43,160,000
5 5 5 % - 5 5 5I7E3EA6]
5(5,375667 5861718 5 S131.974) 5 5 5 34,762 512
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13. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved by the Trustees on August 2, 2023,

14. EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

There were no sigrificant post-Statemenss of financial position events through August 2, 3023,

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On May 31, 2023, Franklin Resources, Inc. {*Franklin Besources”) and Great-West Lifeco Inc,, the parent company of Putram .5, Holdirgs |, LLC
{"Putnam Holdings™), announced that they have ertered into a definitive agreement for a subsidiary of Franklin fesources to acquire Putnam
Holbdings in 2 stock and cash transaction,

As partof this transaction, The Putnam Advisory Company, LLE {"the Marager™), a wholly cwned subsidiary of Putnam Haldings and investment
masaper to the funds would become an irdinect wholly own ed subsideary of Frapklin Resouroes,

The transaction is subject 1o customany clesing conditsons, including recespt of applicable regulatony approvals. Subject te such approvals and
the satisfaction of these conditions, the transaction is currently expected o be consurmmated in the fourth quarter of 2023,

Futnam Diversified income Trust Funds {Cayman) 33
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2023
239,405 35,001
1,587 232
237,818 34,769
13,063,280
32,186,670
5.19 759
5.28 772
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2017 12 22,058,670 32
2018 12 14,992,655 22
2019 12 11,125,913 16
2020 12 24,433,136 36
2021 12 13,494,763 20
2022 12 32,464,292 47
2023 23,767,700 35

100
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1937

2023 1,720 25.1 192

2023
2023

238,234,994
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2021 12 31

2023
146.20

31

23

25

193
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2022

131

23 103
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10

11

10

10

12

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
123,786,400 18,097,572 139,216,557 20,353,461
7,936,010 1,160,245 2,537,639 371,003
3,430,711 501,570 2,926,384 427,837
(1,164,082) (170,189) 34 5
133,989,039 19,589,198 144,680,614 21,152,306
14,763,820 2,158,470 20,033,128 2,928,843
9,152,352 1,338,074 8,634,188 1,262,318
12,546,667 1,834,323 15,821,581 2,313,115
2,191,159 320,347 1,449,574 211,928
16,893 2,470 28,158 4,117
112,121,877 16,392,218 118,565,068 17,334,213
30,334,253 4,434,868 26,834,562 3,923,213
181,127,021 26,480,770 191,366,259 27,977,747
(47,137,982) (6,891,573) (46,685, 645) (6,825,441)
456,034 66,672 794,883 116,212
(47,594,016) (6,958, 245) (47,480,528) (6,941,653)
345,094 50,453 (202,142) (29,553)
345,094 50,453 (202,142) (29,553)
(47,248,922) (6,907,792) (47,682,670) (6,971,206)

160/258



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
3,210,389 469,359 2,894,563 423,185
16,686,093 2,439,507
17,394,764 2,543,114 14,725,945 2,152,933
205,112 29,987 221,474 32,379
332,618 48,629 660,999 96,638
3,301 483 7,327 1,071
7,789 1,139 12,100 1,769
37,840,066 5,532,218 18,522,408 2,707,976
353,285 51,650 3,097,745 452,890
2,484,965 363,302 1,663,195 243,159
490,279 71,679 630,087 92,119
247,045 36,118 462,975 67,687
3,575,574 522,749 5,854,002 855,855
10 11,475,020 1,677,648 4,727,110 691,103
583,439,172 85,298,807 521,342,074 76,220,211
(553,345,664)  (80,899,136) (505,751,648)  (73,940,891)
12 (7,304,036) (1,067,850)  (7,649,130) (1,118,303)
34,264,492 5,009,469 12,668,406 1,852,121
37,840,066 5,532,218 18,522,408 2,707,976
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2022 2021 12 31
2022
4,727,010 OB 103 5oy aap o7a 76220211 gog 750 Gag) (73,040,891) (7,649,130) (1,118,303) 12,668,406 1,852,121
(
10)  (62,097,098) (9,078,596) 62,097,098 9,078,596
( 10,065,140 10,065,140
10) 68,845,008 68,845,008
50,453
345,004 50,453 345,004
(a7,594,016)  (8-958,245) (47,594,016) (6-958,245)
123 80,899,136 5,009,469
11,475,000 1,677,648 583,439,172 85,298,807 (553,345,664) (80-899-130) (7 504 36y (1,067,850) 34,264,492  °-009
2021
1,051,885) 53780 41 gag g1 TLBTTBL  usg 071 120) (66,999,238 (7,446,988) (1,088,750) 24,870,888 3,636,124
(
10)  (29,701,233) (4,342,320) 29,701,233 4,342,320
§ 5,187,203 5,187,203
10) 35,480,188 35,480,188
(29,553)
(202,142)  (29,553)  (202,142)
(47,480,508) (6-941,653) (47,480,508) (6-941,653)
12 31

4,727,110 691,103 521,342,074

76,220,211 (505,751,648) /-%40-891) (7 549 130y (1,118,303) 12,668,406

1,852,121
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
(47,137,982) (6,891,573) (46,685, 645) (6,825,441)
(456,034) (66,672) (794,883) (116,212)
1,163,907 170,163
4,026 589 162,264 23,723
4,311 630 4,290 627
200,071 29,250 209,452 30,622
(2.668,819) (390,181) (2.626,733) (384,028)
16,362 2,392 11,862,527 1,734,301
128,310 18,759 (42,179) (6,167)
(2.,744,460) (401, 240) 1,376,964 201,312
821,770 120,143 (968,775) (141,635)
(2,294) (335) (11,906) (1,741)
(139,808) (20, 440) (406,020) (59, 360)
(50,810, 640) (7,428,516) (37,920, 644) (5,543,998)
10 (215,027,373) (31,437,002) (204,391,072)  (29,881,975)
10 283,872,381 41,502,142 239,871,260 35,069,178
(213,636) (31,234) (211,639) (30,942)
68,631,372 10,033,907 35,268,549 5,156,262
(17,850,000) (2,609,670)
(17,850,000) (2,609,670)
345,094 50,453 (202,142) (29,553)
315,826 46,174 (2,854,237) (417,289)
2,894,563 423,185 5,748,800 840,475
3,210,389 469,359 2,894,563 423,185
594,636 86,936 1,039,088 151,915
16,893 2,470 28,162 4,117
10 62,097,098 9,078,596 29,701,233 4,342,320
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PAC
PAH

02110
100
AUM
AUM
10
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
34,264,492 12,668,406
1ASB

IFRS
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IFRS

13

10

FVTPL
FVTPL

2022 12 31 CLO
FVTPL FVTPL
FVTPL
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two-sided markets
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2022 2021 12 31 IFRS

2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021 12 31
36

2022
2021 12 31 4,311 4,290
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AUM
AUM
2022 2021 12 31
4,620,116 7,674,745
2022 2021 12 31
AUM 20,246,705,373
24,951,801,236
10
2022 2021 12 31

3,430,711 2,926,384
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2022 2021 12 31
17,394,764 14,725,945
2022 2021 12 31
702,362 1,652,335
2021
12,099,212
10 2022 2021 12 31
112,121,877 118,565,068
10

AUM

EIP

10

EIP
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301.7701-3
2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021 12 31
probable threshold
IFRS
2022 12
31 2021 12 31
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AOCL

AOCL

AOCL

IFRS 16
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IFRS
IAS 12 2021 1ASB IAS 12
2023
1AS 2021 12 1ASB 1AS
2023
1AS IFRS 2021 12 1ASB 1AS
IFRS
significant
material
2023
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
FVTPL
CLO 16,686,093
FVTPL 16,686,093
2022 2021 12 31
2022 12 31
16,686,093 16,686,093
17,599,876 17,599,876
34,285,969 34,285,969
2,838,250 4,760,940
2,838,250 4,760,940
2021 12 31
14,947,419 14,947,419
14,947,419 14,947,419
4,760,940 4,760,940
4,760,940 4,760,940

2022 2021 12 31
173/258
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 12 31
FVTPL (1,163,907) (1,163,907)
(175) (175)
(1,163,907) (175) (1,164,082)
2021 12 31
FVTPL
34 34
34 34
2022 12 31
7,296 110,951 388,203 506,450
(2,521) (103,647) (388,182) (494, 350)
4,775 7,304 21 12,100
(1,043) (3,247) 21) (4,311)
7,296 110,951 388,203 506,450
(3,564) (106,894) (388,203) (498, 661)
3,732 4,057 7,789

2021 12 31
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7,296 110,951 388,203 506,450
(1,478) (100, 400) (388,182) (490,060)
5,818 10,551 21 16,390
(1,043) (3,247) (4,290)
7,296 110,951 388,203 506,450
(2,521) (103,647) (388,182) (494, 350)

4,775 7,304 21 12,100
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
129,505 128,624
75,607 92,850
205,112 221,474

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
137,270 265,580
195,348 395,419
332,618 660,999

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
228,378 444,435
18,667 18,540

247,045 462,975
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
630,087 1,036,107
452,008 632,619
(594, 636) (1,039,088)
2,820 449
490,279 630,087
2022 2021 12 31
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
3,301 7,327
3,301 7,327
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
452,008 632,619
452,008 632,619
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
4,026 162,264
4,026 162,264
456,034 794,883
2022 2021 12 31
2022
2021 12 31 2022
2021 12 31
2022 2021 12 31 17
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2022 12 31
393,721 1,698 395,419
(198,373) (1,698) (200,071)
195,348 195,348
2021 12 31
598,024 6,847 604,871
(204,303) (5,149) (209, 452)
393,721 1,698 395,419
2022 2021 12 31
2022
2021 12 31 230,545

239,826

178/258



2023
2024
2025

2022
2023
2024

10

2022 12 31

234,610

234,610
(6,232)

228,378

2021 12 31

234,857
233,017

467,874
(23,439)

444,435

2022 12 31

228,378

228,378

2021 12 31

213,968
230,467

444,435
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2010
31 ULC PIC 6,740,991
PIC
2022 2021 12 31 11,475,020 4,727,110
2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
PIM
20,117,393 21,498,340
U.S. PUSH
13,221,653 3,758,949
PRM 3,735,664 3,305,072
UK
PIL 167,472 2,321,500
PSERV 197,630 237,813
P1JCO 119,398 226,499
PIA
274,185 162,475

PIIL (235,706)
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37
(1,355,559)
uLC PIC
(10,810,533) (12,612,375)
PFTC (14,192,283) (13,935,457)
11,475,020 4,727,110
2022 2021 12 31 AUM
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
7,773,973 10,989,339
AUM 3,080,543,498 4,446,620,960
2022 2021 12 31 979,446
1,332,985
2022 2021 12 31

84 81
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PIC PIC
PIC
PAC
PFTC
PIIL 2021
AUM
2020 37
PIM PAC
PFTC 37
PIC PIIL 2021
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
82,560,411 90,073,360
1,355,559

83,915,970 90,073,360
3,531,757 3,885,538
8,851,510 13,438,748
32,779 46,422
12,416,046 17,370,708
71,499,924 72,702,652
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2022
2021 12 31 3,430,711 2,926,384

2022 2021 12 31
112,121,877 118,565,068

2022 12 31 2021 12 31

PIM 82,591,992 88,230,747
PIL 10 12,485,339 12,453,758
PRM 12,069,226 10,398,272
P1JCO 2,164,447 2,922,206
AUM
PIIL 1,764,998
PFTC 2.28 1,549,970 1,535,155
PIC 2.28 334,477 379,560
PIA 926,426 880,372

112,121,877 118,565,068

AUM AUM  32.5
AUM  20.25
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2022 12 31
62,097,098
2021 12 31
29,701,233
401

2022 2021

12 31 411,093 366,989
PUSH
2022 2021 12 31
1,953,381 1,766,696
2022 2021 12 31

3,694,906 2,382,833
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EIP EIP
EIP
IFRS EIP
EIP
EIP
2022 2021
12 31 1,151,113 2,592,294
2022
2021 12 31 699,107 682,675
2022 12 31

4,407,818 3.43
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
338,175 14.27 470,896 13.79
146,320 12.01 105,164 16.54
(73,139) 13.87 (216,201) 14.42

4,000 16.54
(35,970) 14.16 (21,684) 13.32
12 31
379,386 13.51 338,175 14.27
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

428,266 428,008
914,402 757,396
2,340,788 2,369,616
11,642 112,643

3,695,098 3,667,663
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2022 2021 12 31 30,334,253
26,834,562
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
PUSH 27,084,174 24,234,802
PRM 2,363,000 1,975,014
PSERV 887,079 867,934
PRM (243,188)
30,334,253 26,834,562
11
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
428,179 414,148
390,919 235,307
361,842 92,697
200,071 204,303
4,220 4,290
1,698 5,149
3,563
800, 667 493,680
2,191,159 1,449,574
12
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
(7,649,130) (7.,446,988)
345,094 (202,142)
(7,304,036) (7,649,130)

13
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2022 2021 12 31
300,000,000
2022 12 31
2022 12 31
2028
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
234,610 234,610
2021 12 31
2027
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

467,874 234,857 233,017
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CLO
2022 2021 12 31 813,000
925,000
PIM PAC
10 2022 2021 12 31
4,838,000 5,776,000
16
2022 12 31 2023 25

2023 PUSH 1

10
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STATEMENTS OF LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Years ended December 31,

I 'S8 2022 2021
REVENUE
Tivestment advisory fees, netl $123. 786, 400 $139. 216,557
Performance fees 1036000 2.537.639
Service fee revenoe (Mote 140) 3430711 2,026,384
Mel mvestmen gami{boss) and other income (Nole 3) (1,164, 032) 34
Total revenue S153 989,059 L2144 6800614
OPERATING EXPENSES
Compensition and benefiis 514,763 820 52000351248
Professional and exiemal services 152,352 B034, 158
Drealer commissions 12,546,067 15821581
Cilecr operating expenscs (Mote 1) 2,191,159 1449574
Frmamcing charges 16,893 28,158
Service lee expense (MNote 10) 112,121,877 118,505, 0658
Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net (Mote 10) 30,334,253 26,834,562
Total operating cxpenses 5181127021 5191,366,25%
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (47.137.9%2) (46,685, 645)
Incomc tax expense (Mole 8) 436,034 T4 BRI
NET LOSS (#7594 0 16) (47.480,528)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS, NET OF INCOME TAX (Note 12}

Items that may be reclassificd subsequently to income/loss

Unrealized foremm exclunge gainilossy on transkaion of foreign opemtions, net £345 044 (5202, 142)
Tuotal other comprehensive gain / (loss) for the vear, net of income tax 345,084 (202, 142)
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (847,248,922 (S4T.682.670)

The accompanying nodes are an imdegrl pan of these Tinancial statements.
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BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,
In LUS3 oL 2021
ASSETS
Cush and cosh cquovalents (Node 2) 53210389 52,894 563
Imvestments (Noic 3) 16, 686,175 —
Accrued investment advisory foes receivable, net (Mole 2) 17,394, Tid 14,725,943
Onher recervables (Note 5) 205,112 2474
Olier assets (Nole &) EEFRTE ] [EE TR
Drefierred tax asscis (Mode 8) 3,301 7327
Capital asscis, net (Mote 4) 7.780 12, 1006
TOTAL ASSETS L37,840, 0646 518522 408
LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY
Laabilitics
Accrucd compensation and emplovee benelits 5353, 245 53,097 745
Accounts payable and accreed expenses 2484 63 1663, 195
Currenl tax Labaline (Note 8) 490 2TY 630,087
Onlier labilities (Rote T) 247045 62 975
Total liabilitecs $3.575.574 55,854,002
Member's oquity
Accounis pavable o Parent and affiliatcs, nei (Node 100 £11 475,020 54727110
Conterbuted surplus 583439072 521342074
Acoumulaed deficil (5533450640 (505.751.648)
Accumulated other comprehensive boss (MNote 12) (7,304,0536) (7649130
Total Member's cquity 34,264 492 12 G6R, A
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY L1780 0640 18522 408

The accompanying noacs ane an imcgral pan of these financial siements
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31,
I L/55 W22 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss befigre income taxes (547137, 982) (546,683 645)
Income iax expense {456,054) (T4, B83)
Adijustments 1o reconcile net loss 10 cush Nows used in operting KClivities:
Drecrease in FAVTPL scounilics 116307 —
Deferred income 1axes 4,026 162, 264
Depreciaion and amonization of capiial asseis 4,511 4,290
Moin-cash base expende 200,071 200,452
{Increase M decrease in operiing asscls:
Accrsed investment advisory fees receivable, net (2668 819 (2.626,733)
Onher receivables 14,362 11,862,527
Oilier assets 128,310 (42,179)
Increasef{decrease) in opermting liabilities:
Accrsed compensation and emplovee bemefis (2.7, A0 1,376,904
Agcouns pavatde and aconeed expeises 820,770 (R, TT5)
Onher labilities {2,294) (11.906)
Changes in odler operating asseis and liahilitics {139 808) (4G 0200
Met cash used in operating aclivitics (30,5 10,6400 (37.920,644)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliales (Mote 10) (215.027,373) (204.391,072)
Accoands pervable to Parent and afliliates (Mote 10) 2183872381 239.871.260
Pavimems on principal porion of lease liabiliy (213,636) (211.6359)
Metcash provided by ning activities G8.631,372 35268 549

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of imvestments {17, %50,000) —
Met cash used in iwvesting acuivities (17850, (00 _—
Effect of clanges m exchunge mtes on cash and cash cquivalents 45,064 (202,142
MET INCREASE(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS I15826 (2R5L.237)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2894563 5. TR B0
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR £3.210,389 $2.804,563

Supplementary Cash Flow Information:

Foreign mcome tax pard (Note 8) 5504, 630 S1.039 0858
Imerest pasd 16,893 L3R 162
Supplementary Non-Cash Flow Information feom Financing Activities:

Contnbution-m-kind receved from Parent (Mote 14 562097 0498 529701233

The accompanyving notes arc an integral part of these financial statements.
i
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC (the “Company™ or “PAC”), meluding its Singapore Branch, 15 a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Putnam Advisory Holdings 11, LLC ("PAH II"), and is an indirectly wholly-ovwned
subsidiary of Putam Investments, LLC (the “Parent™ or “Pumam™), the latter of which is an indirectly majoritv-
owned subsidiary of Great-West Lifeco Ine. (“Lifeco™). The Company's ultimate parenl company is Power
Corporation of Canada. The Company 15 incorporated in the State of Delaware in the United States of Amenca.
The registered office and principal place of business is located at 100 Federal Strect, Boston, Massachusetts,
02110, United States of America. The U.S. dollar (%) is the functional curreney of the Company,

The Company’s primary business is 1o provide investment advisory services to institutional clients. In connection
with prowiding these services, the Company receives an investment advisory fee, which 1= based upon the chients
negotiated fee mte and the average asscts under management, Company revenue s largely dependent on the total
value and composition of assets under management (“AUM™), which include domestic and intemational cquity
and debt assets (the “Company Funds™)y; accordingly, Muctuations in financial markets, including those cansed by
geopolitical events, health crises or other similar events, and net sales of products, and in the composition of
AUM affect revenues and resulis of operations.

The Company, its Parent and its affiliates have significant interdependencics, as desenbed i Notes 2 and 10, The
accompanyving financial statements have been prepared from the separate records maintained by the Company and
may not be indicative of the financial position or the results of operations that would have existed if the Company
had been operated as an unaffiliated company.

Economic dependency

The financial statements have been appropnately prepared using the going concern basis of accounting. however,
the contimuing operanons of the Company are rehant upon the ongeing support of the Parent. The Company has
an ending Member's cquity of 534,264 492 and 512,668,406 at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,
respectively,

2. Basis of Preparation and Summary of Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS7), as issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (“TASE™). The policies
sct out below wene consistently applied to all the penods presented unless otherwise noted. IF applicable, the
Company will adopt, or has implemented changes in accounting policics for the adoption of new or amended
accounting tandards that are relevant o the business as desenbed in Changes in Accounting Policies within this
Mote.

Accounting Estim ates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 1FRS requires management to make significant
judgmenis mvolving estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied amounis of assets and labilitics and
disclosure of assets and habilities at the balance sheet dates and the repored amounts of revenue and expenses
dunng the reporting peniod. Although some uncertainty 15 inherent in these judgments and estimates, management
believes that the amounts recorded are reasonable

Key sources of estimation uncerainty and arcas where significant judgments have been made are listed below and
dizcussed throughout the notes to the financial statements including:

+  In the determimation of the far value of financial instruments, the Company’s management exercises
Judgment in the determination of fair value inputs (Mote 3)
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
+  The Company operates within vanous tax junsdictions where management judgments and estimates
are required when mterpreting the relevant tax laws, regulations, and legislation in the detcrmination
of the Company s tax provisions and the carrving amounts of its tax asscts and liabilitics (Note 8)

+  Legal and other provisions are recopnized resultime from past events which, in the judgment of
management, have resulted m a probable outflow of cconomic resounces which would be passed 1o a
third-party to settle the obligation, Management uses judgment to evaluate the possible outcomes and
risks in determining the best estimate of the provision at the balance sheet date (Mote 13).

+  The Company uses esiimates o determing certain components of share-based amenization expense
including the share price and forfeiture estimates (Note 10).

+  Management uses judgment in determining the ineremental borrowing rate used to discount lease
pavments based on the applicable reference rate. coupled with a credit spread and lease specific
adjustmcnts (Nate 2).

The significant accounting policies ane as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cazh equivalents consist of cash on hand and demand deposits with banks, which are readily convertible
into cash. The carrving value of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value.

Investments

Investments are classificd as fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL™) or cquitv method based om
management’s intention or charactenstics of the investment. The Company may elect to classify the investment as
FVYTPL. or cquity method, depending on the strategic nature of the imvestment. The Company currently has not
classified any mvestments on the Balance Shects as equity method.

During the vear ended December 31, 2022, the Company invested in the subordinated debt of a Pumam-sponsored
collateralized loan obligation (TCLO"), which 1z classified as FVTPL. FVTPL anvestinents have readily
determinable far values and are carmed at fair value in Investments i the Balance Sheets. FVTPL investments
are generally valued at the last sale or closing price on the dav of valuation or, if no sales took place on such date,
at the mean between the closing bid and asked prices on the exchange where such securities are principally traded,
or the latest available bid and asked prices for unlisted securities or where current prices are not available. Dbt
securitics are valued on the basis of valuations furnished by a pricing service, which generally determines
valuations taking into account factors such as institutional-size trading in similar secuntics, vield, quality, coupon
rate, matunty, tvpe of issue, trading characteristics, and other market data. Changes in fair value are reported in
Met investment gain{loss) and other ineome in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss. The net gain or
loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest eamed on the financial asscl.
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair Value Measurement
The Company’s financial assets and liabilitics recorded at fair value have been categorized based upon the
following fair valug hicrarchy:

Financial assets and habalities catcgonzed as Level 1 unlize observable, unadjusted guoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or habilines that the Company has the abality to access

Financial asscts and Labilines categonzed as Level 2 unilize observable mputs other than Level 1 unadjusted
guoted market prices. The pricing service inputs include, but are net limited to, benchmark vields, reponed trades,
broker/dealer guotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark seeunties, offers and reference data.

Financial assets and liabilitics categonzed as Level 3 unilize one or more sigmificant inputs that are not based on
observable market inputs and include situanions where there iz litthe, if anv, market activity for the asset or
liability.

In certain cases, the mputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. [n
such cases, the level in the fair value hicrarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls has
been determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
The Company’s assessment of the sipmificance of a particular input to the far value measurement in i0s catirety
reguires judgment and considers factors specific to the asscet or hability,

Other Financial Instruments

Accrued investment advisory foes receivable, net, Other receivables, Accrued compensation and emploves
benefits and Accounts pavable and secrued expenses are classified as bemng measuned at amortized cost, and
imitially recorded on the Balance Sheets at far value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective mterest rate method, unless short-term, where mtercst would be msigmificant. The carmving values of
Accrued investment advisory foes receivable, net, Other reccivables, Accmeed compensation and emplovee
benefits and Accounts pavable and acerucd expenscs approximates their fair values.

Investment Impairment

In accordance with IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, financial asscts were evaluated at December 31, 2022 and
2021, where management used judgement to assess impaiment through the expected credit loss model for each
¢lazs of financial assets. The Company’s financial assets prmarnily consist of investments, cash and cash
cquivalents, as well as vanous receivable balances. A magority of the Company’s receivables balanee at
December 31, 2022 and 2021 consists of accrued investment advisory fees. net owed from third party entities for
services performed in accordance with investment management agreements, The Company assessed the expected
loss rate on these receivables over a period of 36 months before December 31, 2022 and 2021 and concluded
based upon historical data that the nsk of expected credit loss is insignificant to the Company. The remaining
receivables consist of other receivables, which based on the nature and history of the receivables, the expected
credit loss is insignificant to the Company. Cash and cash equivalents consist of liquid funds held at banks with
high eredit-ratings. The probability of default for these counterpartics 15 considered immaterial and management
concluded that the cxpected credit boss is insignificant to the Company, Debt instruments are deemed (o be
impaired when there 15 no longer reasonable assurance of timely collection of the full amounts due.

Capital assets, net

Capital assets, net are carned at histoncal cost less acoumulated depreciation computed on a straght-ling basis
over their estimated useful lives, which vary from three to seven vears, Capital assets are evaluated for
impairment on 3 quanerly basis. Assets no longer used, and the associated accumulated depreciation, are removed
from the Balance Sheets with a charge recorded in the Staterments of Loss and Comprehensive Loss for the net

198/258



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
carrying value of the assets. Leaschold improvements are depreciated over the life of the lease. Depreciation of
capital assets for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, included in Other operating expenses in the
Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, is 34,311 and 54,290, respectively

Offsetting and Presentation of Intercompany Receivables and Pavables

Intercompany receivables and pavables are offset, and the net amount 15 presented in the Balance Shects. This
occurs when the Company and its Pargnt and affiliates owe cach other a determinable amount, the Company has
the right to set off the amount owed with the amount owed by the affiliates. and the Company intends to st off
the amount owed, and the right is enforccable by law by a Putnam Master Metting Agreement, 1t is the Company s
pelicy te include Accounts payable to Parent and affiliates, met as a component of Member's equity on the
Balamee Sheets, as penodic settbement only occurs in the form of a non-cash accounting transaction.

Revenue Recognition

The Company provides investment advisoery services on a dulbv, monthly, or quanery basis, The Company
behieves the performance obligation for providing investment advisory services 15 satisfied over time because the
customer 15 receiving and consuming the benefits as they ane provided by the Company. Fee armangements are
based on a contractual percentage applicd to the customer’s average or period-end AUM, Fees are camcd dailv as
thev relaie specifically to the services provided in that penod. which are distinet from the services provided in
other penods, and are received monthly, quarterly, semi=annually, or anmually. Investment advisory fees ane
recognized in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, net of expense limits and rebates of 54,620,116
and 57,674,745 for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively,

The Company, as agent, is the sponsor for a number of structured entitics. These structured entitics include
institutional fuinds and other investment products. The nature and purpose of these catitics 15 10 provide investors
with a variety of mvestment opportunitics through managed investment strategices. As of December 31, 2022 and
2021, total AUM relating to the institutional portfolios and other investment products of the Company was
£20,246,705,373 and $24,951,801,236, respectively

As additional consideration for the investment advisory services noted above, the Company reccives fiees that var
based on specified performance measures, for example, when a fund exceeds a specificd benchmark or
contractual hurdle over the contractual performance penod or the life of a fund. These fees are camed once
account retums have exceeded specified performance measures, and are calculated as a percentage of account
returns. Performance fees are considered vanable consideration, as the uncermanty 15 dependent on the value of
the assets at future poants in tme as well as meeting a specified compound hurdle mte, bath of which are highly
susceptible to factors outside the Company’s influence. Revenues are recopnized once it is probable that a
significant reversal will not cocur, Performance fees recognized in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive
Loss in the current peniod are primanly related to performance obligations that have been sansfied, and
management is assured of their realization.

SED-E E-|-| E-];ns:

The Company receives revenue in accordance with its transfer pncing programs established with certain affiliates,
in order to compensate the Company for investment management services it provides to its affiliates, which is
presented as Service fee revenue in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss (Note 10). The Company
belicves that the perdformance obligation 15 satisfied when the operating costs are incurred. This revenue is
recogmized as camed. Service foe revenue for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 15 53,430,711 and
£2.926,384 respectively
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Met mvestment panf{loss) and other income includes changes i the far value of the Company's investments,
interest income and dividend income, This income is recognized in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive
Lixss as cammed.

Agerued investment advisory foes receivable, net reported in the Company’s Balance Sheets include 5173494, 764
and 514725945 of receivables from contracts with customers &t December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively,
Invesmment advisory fees receivable are shown net of foes waived pursuant o specified contractual expense limits
of the Funds toaling $702 362 and $1.652.333 for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 respectively. At
January 1, 2021, Accrued mvestment advisory fees recervable, net included 12,000 212 of reccivables from
contracts with customers,

Service fee expense

The Company has established transfer pnicing programs with certain of iz affiliates which are providing services
to the Company, all of which result in the Company paying a service fee expense to the affiliates based on the
terms of the programs. These expenses are presented as Service foe expense on the Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss (Note 10% and ane expensed as incurred, Service foe expense for the vears ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021 s S11 2121877 and 51 18,565,068, respectively.

Certzun of these transfer pricing programs are with affiliates for which the Company provides all investment
advisory services related to the affiliates” third-party clients, In exchange for these services, the Company collects
the contractual revenue and incurs the contractual expenses related to the thind-party relationships, Additional
details on these arrangements are described m Note 10,

Dealer Commissions

Dealer commissions include distnbution fees mewrred for certain share classes of the Company Funds, which
include costs incurred at the time of the sale as well as recuming commissions based on AUM. Distnbution fees
are presented on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss and paid by the Company when due, pursuant
1o the contractual agrecment.

Share-Based Payvments

Share-based payvment awards for restricted Class B shares and options on Class B shares granted to emplovess
under the Pumam Investments. LLC Equity Incentive Plan (the “EIP7) (Note 10). are accounted for as cquity-
setthed awards. Under this methoed, compensanon cost recogmeed imcludes compensation cost for all share-based
pavment armmgements granted based on the grant-date fair value, which 15 determined vsing both the market and
income valuation approaches as outlined in the EIF. The Company uscs the graded vesting method to amontize the
awards, The effeet of forfeitures on restricted shares is estimated when recognizing compensation ¢ost. Share-
based compensation is recorded as a componeni of Compensation and benefits on the Statemenis of Loss and
Comprchensive Loss.

Income Taxes

The Company ¢lected to be treated as a disregarded entity pursuant to Treasury Regulation Section 301,7701-3
for federal ingome tax purposes, Generally, disregarded entitics are not subject 1o entitv-leve] federal or state
icoanie taxation and, as such, the Company 15 nol required to provide for mcome taxes. The Company has no S,
federal or state tax assets or habilities on its Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021

The Company's Singapore branch operation is subject to local tax in the jurisdiction in which it is located. The
related current and deferred tax asscts and liabilitics are disclosed on the Balance Sheets at December 31, 2022
and 2021, respectively, and the related cash tax pavments are made by the branch.

]
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The Company’s tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred income taxes i the Company's branch
operations, The Company has not provided for any U5, federal or state tax cxpense,  Tax is recognized as an
expense or benefit in profit or loss exeept to the extent that it relates to items that are recognized outside profit or
logz (whether in other comprehensive loss or direetly in equity), i which case the tax is recogmized m other
componcnts of the finamcial statements.

Under the IFRS liability method, a provision for tax uncertamtics which meet the probable threshold for
recognition i measured based on the probabiliny weighted average approach. There were no uncertan fax
positions recorded by the Company in either vear presented.

Current income tax is based on taxable income for the vear. Current tax liabilitics (assets) for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the avation authonitics wsing the tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Current tax assets and current tax
liabalines are offset, if a legally enforceable nght exasts 1o offset the recopnized amounts and the entity intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the lability simultancously. The current tax
expense represents the current tax obligation of the Company's branch operation for the full vears ended
December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,

Deferred meame tax 15 the tax expected to be pavable or recoverable on differences ansing between the carmving
amounts of assets and liabilitics in the financial statements and the corresponding fax basis wsed in the
computation of taxable income. Deferred tax liabilitics are generally recogmzed for all taxable temporary
differences whercas deferred tax assets are recogmized 1o the extent it is probable that sufficient Riture taxable
profits will be avanlable to utihze the asset.

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balanee sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
i5 no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avalable to allow all or pant of the deforred tax assct (o
be utilized. The unrecopnized deferred tax asset is reassessed at each balance sheet date and recognized 1o the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Dreferred tax asscts and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the vear when the
asset is realized or the liabiliy is setled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
cnacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilities are offset, of a legally enforccable
nght exists o set off current tax assets agamst current tax habalities and the deferred imcome taxes relate to the
same taxable authonty and the same taxable entity or different taxable entitics which intend to scttle current tax
liabilitics and asscts on @ net basis, The deferred tax expense represents movement in the overall deferred tax
balances.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company's Financial stafements are preparcd i United States dollars, which 1s the functional and
presentation cumency of the Company, For the forgign branch, ¢xchange rate differences ansing from the
translation of monetary asseis and liabilities are recorded o Unrealized forcign exchange gainf{loss) on translation
of foreign operations, nct, nel i Accumulated other comprehiensive loss (“AOCL™).

Assets and habilities denominated i forcign currencies are translated mto Umited States dollars at the mate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet dates and all forcign denominated income and expense ftems are

translated at a monthly average of daily rates. Unrcalized forcign currency tmnslation gains and losscs on the
Company ‘s net investment in its foreign operations are presented separately as a component of AOCL. Unrealized

12
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gains{(losses) will be recognized in Met imvestment gain{loss) and other income on the Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss when there has been a disposal of the investment in the forcign operations,

Foreign currency translation gaing and losses on forcign currency transactions arg ingluded in Cther operating
expenses in the Statemeits of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Member's Equity

Contributed surplus represents capital contributions made to the Company from the Parent. Accumulated deficit
represents the accumulated losses of the Company, AQCL represents the total of the unrealized foreign exchange
gainzf{losses) on translation of forcign operations. On the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, this
activity is classified by nature and grouped between items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
and those that will not be reclassificd. Accounts pavable to Parent and affiliates, net represents transactions
between the Company and other subsidianics of the Parent,

Lenses
Under IFRS 16, the Company recognizes a nght-of-use asset and a lease habiliny at the lease commencement date
on the Balance Sheets.

The righi-of-use asset is imiially measured based on the imtial amount of lease liability adjusted for any lease
pavments made at or before the commencement date, plus anv imibal direct costs incurred, as well as an ¢stimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underfving asset or to restore the underlyving asset or the site on which it s
located, less any lease mcentive neccived, Lease modificabons are treated as a new lease of the modificabions
represent a substantive change in scope or consideration paid, The asset is deprecsated to the carlier of the useful
lifi of the nght-of-use asset or the lease term using the stright-line method and s included within Other assets on
the Balance Shects, Depreciation expense on mght-of-use assets is incleded wathun Other operating expenses on
the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.

The lease liability is initiallv measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commengement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that me cannot be readily
determined, the Company shall use s ineremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
bomowing rate as its discount rate and the rate iz applicd to portfolios of leases with reasonably similar
charactenstics, The lcasc liability 1s measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method and is
included within Other liabilitics on the Balance Shects, Interest expense on lease habilities is included within
Financing charges on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Future Accounting Policies

The Company may be impacted in the future by the IFRS set out in the following table;

Amendment o 1A% 12 - Deferned
Tax Related to  Asscts  and
Liabalitigs ansing from a Single
Transaction

On May 7, 2021, the 1ASE published Deferved Tav Related to Asseds and
Lighilities from a Niagle Transaction, amendments to IAS 12, frcome
Paves. The amendmenis clanfy that for transactions in which both
deductible and taxable temporary differences anse on imbal recognibion
which result i deferred 1ax assets and habilities of the same amount,
deferred tax assets and habilities are to be recognized.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting penods beginning on or
after January 1, 2023, with carlier apphication permatted.  The Company
docs not anbicipate a sigmficant impact on s Anancial stalements as a
result of these amendments.

Amendment to IAS § - Definition
of Accounting Estimates

On Febrary 12, 2021, the TASB published Peffiminion of Acconnting
Fsrimates, amendments o 1AS K, Adcconming  Policies, Changes in
Aceounting Fatimates amd Freors, The amendments clanfy the difference
between an accounting policy and an accounting cstimate by defining
accounting cstimates as “monctary amounts in financial statements that arc
subject to measurement uncertainty

The amendments are effective for annual reporting penods beginning on or
after January 1, 2023, with early application permitted. The Company does
not anticipate a significant impact on its financial statements as a result of
these amendments.

Amendments to 1A5 1 and IFRS
Practice Statement 2 - Disclosure of
Accounting Policics

On Februarv 12, 2021, the TASE published Disclosure of Accounting
Policies. amendments to IAS 1, Prescntation of Financial Statements and
IFES Practice Statemcnt 2, Making  Matenality  Judgements,  The
amendments change the requircment that an cntitv 15 to disclose its
“significant accounting policies” by requiring that an entity is to disclose its
material accounting policy information. The amendments clanfy how an
entity determines whether accounting policy information is material,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting penods beginning on or
after January 1, 2023, with carlicr application permatted. The Company will
review and refine its accounting policy disclosuncs on its  financial
statements as a result of these amendments.
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3. Investments

{a) The carmving value of investments 15 as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
FTer
Imvestmient in CLO suborchnated debq by L 5—
Total FW¥TPL investment 516,686,093 5—

The Company recogmzes investments purchased, and derecogmzes investments sold, on the trade date.

The following table presents information about all of the Company s financial assets and liabilities measured
at faur value on both a recurnng and non=recurring basis as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and indicates the
fair value hicrmrchy of the valuation technigues utilized by the Company to determine such fair value:

December 3 1, 2022

Assels measured at fair value Lavel 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Todal
Tmvestmenls B S10.686,093 5— S16,686.003
Ciher financial instmiments ™' - 17,399 876 — 17,599 876
Tatal financial asseis 5— HJJ,_MS.@W o msns.w;
Liahilitiex measwred ol foir value

Onber fimancial instruments ' s 2 K3K250 — 2838250
Total finamcial liahilitics 5 51838250 S— 52,838,250

Degember 31, 2021

Asseis measured at fair value Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Todal
Imvesimenis — — — —
Caber firancial imstments "' - 14947419 - 14947 419
Total financial assels o S1404T 419 §— 514947410
Liahilities measwred af foir value

Other financial irstriments — 4,760,940 — 4,760,940
ml Tinancial linhilities o S, i 9400 o 54, TED44

1" tHher fimaneaal instrumerts include Assried mvestment advreory Fogs reegmvably, nel, Ciher revemvablies, Avenagd compersatios and
emplives bmalite and Advomns pavabls and acirued eapirras,

“ tHher financial Estrammts are milially recorded af faw value and subsogquengly measered al amordiced cosl usmg the olfoctive micresd rale
msethod. The amorsiad cost of ather Timndaal sednenests approximales thar Tair vabae,

Duning the vears ended Docember 310 2022 and 2021, there were no transfers made between any level
calegones.

All gains and losses recorded during the vear for assets held at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are reported in
Met investment gainf{loss) and other income in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss. The
Company docs not believe that changing one or maore of the inputs (o reasonable altemate assumption would
change thewr fur values sigmficantly,

204/258



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{b) Net mvestment gaimnd{loss) and other income for the vears presented 15 compnsed of the following:

For the Year Ended December 2022
Investment

Parlalios Chlier Total
et unrealized and realized losses (designated FVTPL) (51.163,907) 55— (51.163.907)
Drividend income and other income/(losses) — (175) {175)
Nel investment Eqinﬂ loss) and other income (51, 163.907) (%175 {S1,164,081)

For the Year Ended December 2021

Investment

Ponfolies Oither Tatal
et unrenlized and realied bosses (desigrated FVTEPL) — § —
Davidend income and other inconse — 34 34
Mel invesiment Ell:m'[lnu:l and other income S 534 R34

4. Capital Assets, net

The carrving value of capital assets. and the changes in the carmving value of capital assers, ane as follows:

For the Year Emded December 31, 2022

Furniture and EDF Leaschold
fistures Equipment Improvemenis Total
Carry ing value, beginning of year £7.296 110951 SRR 203 £506.450
Less: accunubated deprecistion {2.521) (I3 64T {IBE, 182) {494,350)
Net carmving value, begrning of vear 4,775 7,304 21 12100
Dreprecution {1043 13224 21) 4311
Carrying value, end of year 7,296 110,951 IRE 203 S04, 450
Less: accumkated depreciation {3, 564) {106, By {388, 203) {498.661)
Net carrving value, end of year £3.732 54087 o 57789
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Furniture and EDP Leaschold
fixtures Equipment Imprrovements Total
Carrying value, beginning of year 87,290 S110951 S3IRE 203 5506450
Less: accumulated depreciaztion (1.478) { 100, 40Ky (388, 182) {4500, (W)
Nel canying value, beginning of vear AR1% 10,551 21 165, 39
Dreprecuton {10430 (3.24T) — {4,290
Carrying value, end of vear 7,296 110,95] IRE 203 S0, 450
Less: accunmlated deprecintion (2521) {103,647y (388, 183) (494, 3500
Net carryving value, end of year 54,775 57304 521 512,000
16
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5. (her Receivables
Other receivables consist of the following:

December 11, W22

December 31, 2021

Rem deposil 2129505 FI.624
iher recenables 75607 92 850
Total SH05,112 S22 AT

6. Other Assets

Other assets consist of the following:

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Prepaid asscis £137.270 L2365, 580
Righi-ol-use assets 193,548 395,419
Total 5332618 501,999

7. Other Linbilities
Other liabilitics consist of the following:

Decombser 31, M022

December 31, 2]

Lease liabilities EX8ATR 444 435
Chiher liabilitics 15,667 18540
Total SHTIME S461,975

8. Income Taxes
{a) The Company has current tax liabiliies related to its branch operation. Tax pavable for the branch is as

fslbonws:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Cumrent tax liability, beginning of vear 630,087 S1.036,107
Expenses during vear 452,008 GI2A19
Pavineiils nade on socouil {594, 636) {10030 085)
Chlier 18200 444
Current tax liability, end of year S400,.279 S6MLIRT

(b} The following table identifics the major components of Deferred tax asscts at December 31, 2022 and

2021:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Chler 3301 T.327
Deferred tax wssets 53,301 57,327
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() Income tax expense for the vear is compnsed of current and deferred taxes:

{1} Current tax
For the vear ended For the yvewr coded
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Current [ax expense SHA2.008 SO3Z619
Total current tax SAS2008 S632017
(i) Defermed tax

For the vear ended For the yvear ended
Diecember 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Origination and reversal of temporar dilference S40206 £162.264
Totul defemed tux cxpense 5026 5162, 264
Total income tax cypense S56,034 STOLERS

The Company does not have any unrecognized tax benefits recorded in the vears ended Decernber 31, 2022 and
2021, The Company s policy is to include penaltics and interest related to uncertain tax positions in its income tax
provision. Dunng the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company did not recognize any interest and
penalties in its ncome tax provision and does nod have any accrued interest and penalties at December 31, 2022
and 2021

The Company's branch located in Singapore is taxed at the statutory rate of 17% for both the vears ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, with exemption and rebate allowed up o a nominal amount,

9. Leases
The Company lcases buildings for office space and cquipment used in the normal course of operations. These
leases have remaining terms of | vear,

{a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use asset Ripht-of-use asset Right-of-use asset

December 31, 2022 Property Equipment Total

Netcarry ing amount, beginming of the vear 5393721 S1o9s $395.419
Depreciatson (198.373) {1,698} (2000713
et carrving amount, end of vear 5195548 — 5195348

Right-of-usc asset  Righi-of-use asset Right-of-use asset

Decembaer 31, 2021 Froperty Equipment Total

el carrving amount, beginning of the vear 5598024 6,847 604,871
Depreciation (204,303) {3,149 (209.452)
Mel carrying amount, end of year £303,721 160 L305.419

Initial recognition of the nght-of-usc assets and lecase liabilitics, as well as subsequent additions and lease
modifications, represent nen-cash activitics and accordingly are not presented in the Statements of Cash Flows.
The nght-of-use asset additions presented above approximate the impact on the lease habibitics,
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The Company leases an office building in Singapore and cquipment.

There were no leases with residual value guarantees or leases not ver commenced to which the Company is
committed, and there were no costs relating (o vanable lease pavments that do not depend on an index or rate for
the vears ended December 31, 2022 or 2021, The total cash outflow for leases amounted to 5230545 and
$23% 826 for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively,

(b} Lease liabilities

Maturity Analysis

December 3, 2022 December 31, 2021

023 T srmelo w2 T sndEsT
2024 —_ X3 3017
025 — 024 —
5234610 567874

Less: Uneamed interesi (6.232) Less: Unearmed inerest (23,439

Analyred as!

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Current 228,178 Curment 213968

Won-curren — Mon-curment 20467

% 218,374 % 44,435

10, Related Party Transactions

The Company has sigmficant mterdependencies with its Parent and its affiliates, which are deseribed below. The
Company is responsible for and has established processes to identify all related partics and to disclose all
significant transactions invelving related partics

Accounts payable to Parent and affiliates, net

The Company instructs third-partics o remat cash directly to the Parent or affiliates and mstructs the Parent (o
disburse cash on the Company’s behalf, The recervables or payables on the Balance Sheets represent amounts for
which the Parent has vet to pay or receive on the Company’s behalf The Parent also allocates cortain expenses to
the Company, Accounts pavable to Parent and affiliates, net represents the net of intercompany fransactions
bBetween the Company, the Parent and affiliates due to (i) the above mentioned receipt and payvinent of eash by the
Parent on the Company’s behalf (1) intercompany service fees and allocatnon of expenses from/to other affiliated
subsidianics of the Parent and (i01) subordinated debt. On March 31, 2010, Putnam Investments Canada ULC
{"PIC™) executed a non-interest beanng subordination agreement with the Company in the amount of 36,740,991
The repayment of this amount is subordinate to the claims of the other creditors of PIC, The loan has no matunity
date, and repavment is not expected within one yvear,

These balances are recorded as corresponding inercases or decreases in the Member's cquity scction of the
Balance Sheets as the Company neither pavs or receives, nor anficipates paving or receiving cash related 1o these
balances, The gross changes in receivable and pavable for the vear related to these transactions are disclosed
separately on the Staements of Cash Flows as financing activiiies. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the
Company had a net intercompany payvable to balance of S11.475.020 and 54 727 110 respectively, which is
included in Accounts pavable to Parent and affiliates, net in the Balance Sheets.
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Intercompany balances due to (from) affiliates as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Mon-tmerest bearning, unscourcd (nreceivable frompypayable 1o

Due to Putnam Investment Management, LLC ("PIM") L 20,117,393 £21,49%,340
D 1o Putnadn U5, Holdings | ("PUSH 17) 13.221.653 3,758 949
D 1o Putnam Retail Management LP ("PRM™) 3735064 3305072
Dhie 10 Putnam Investments Limited - UK ("PIL") 167472 2,321 500
D 1o Putnam ovestor Services, Ing, ("PSERV") 197 630 237813
D 1o Putnam [ovestments Japan Co., Lid, ("PLIOO") 119,308 2ro. 490
Dz 1o Putnam Investments Awstralia Pry Lid ("P1A™) 274,185 162475
D from Putram Tvestments (Treland) Limited ("PIL™) —_ (235,70
D from 37 Capital Strectured Credit General Panner, LLC (1,35535m —
e From Putram Tvestments (Canada) ULC {("PIC™) {1E10.533) {12612.375)
Drue From Puticm Fiducmny Trust Company, LLC ("PFTC") (14,192,283) {13.935.45T)
Accounis gavabile o Paremt and affiliates, net S11ATS A S4.727,110

Revenue and Expenses earned from/paid to Affiliates
A pomion of the Investment advisory fees, net and Performance fees included in revenue on the Statements of
Loss and Comprechensive Loss s attributed to sub-advised institutional clients who are related partics.

The total related pany revenue and ending AUM for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Drecember 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Related Party Revenoe £1.773973 S0 980 339
Relaied Pariy AUM 31,080,543 498 B4 46,620,960

The receivables associated with the revenue received from these related partics are 3979446 and 51,332, 985 as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and are mcluded in Accrued investment management fees receivable,
net on the Balance Sheets.

In addition to the sub-advisory fee income disclosed above, the Company reccives revenue for imvestment
advisory services it provides to certain affiliated funds, OF this amount recorded to Investment advisory fees. net
on the Statements of Loss and Comprehenzive Loss other than the sub-advisory fee income disclosed above,
approcamately 34% and 31% was camed from these afhbated funds respectively, for the vears ended
December 21, 2022 and 2021,

Transfer Pricing Programs

The Company has multiple transfer pricing arangements, the first group being with certain affiliates in which the
Company receives the contractual third-party revenue and also incurs the contractual thind party expenses as
compensation For the investment advisory services ol performs for the affiliates. These agreements ane
summanzed below .

A transfor pricing agreement between the Company and PIC compensates the Company for invesiment advice and
securities rading services it provides to PIC. The terms of the transfer pncing agreement allow for PIC to receive
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a retum om s gross revenue to account for its fiduciary nsk, and for PAC to receive the contractual fees and
expenses as if performs all remaming functions and bears all remaiming nsk. The Company mantains a simlar
agrecment with PFTC. The Company also had a transfer pricing agreement with PIIL which ended in 2021, in
which the Company performed all investment management services on behalf of this affiliate. The Company
collected the contractual revenue and assumed the contractual expenses on behalf of the affilaate. and in exchange
paid a service fee expense based on the affiliate’s AUM. Addiionally a new trmsfer pricing relationship began in
2022 for PAC 1o receive the contractual performance fee revenue related to the 37 Capital Structured Credit
General Partmer, LLC, and in tum compensate PIM for the expense incurred as the result of the revenune camed,

The odal impact of the assumption of the contraciual revenue and expenses by the Company as a result of these
transfer pricing agreements on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss (excluding service fee expense,
which is disclosed scparately in the subsequent service fiee paragraphs) is summarized by financial statcment ling
item

Comtraciead revernne and associated expenses (PFTC. 37 Capicad Strwcinred Credin Gemeral Partmer. LLC. PIC,
arcd PHIL )

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Revene
Imvestment advisory fees, not 82 560,411 00,073 360
Performance fiocs 1,355,559 —
Total revenie 1915970 073 360
Operaling expenses
Prodessional and exiermal services 1,531,757 3BR5538
[Dealer commissions. 2REL5M0 13438748
Oiher operating cxpenscs 32,779 46,422
Towal operating expenses 12416040 17,370,708
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES £70, 490,924 L73.702.652

Service Fee Revenie recerved from Affiliate

Additionally, as described in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policics, the Company recerved 53,430,711
and $2,926,384 of revenue for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, pursuant to a transfer
pricing agreement with an affiliate. This revenue is included in Serviee fee revenue in the Statements of Loss and
Comprchensive Loss.

Service Fee Expense paid to Affiliates
Finally, as described in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, the Company incurred $112,121,877 and
£118,565,068 of service foe expense for the vears ended Decomber 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, pursuant to
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transfer pricing agreements with certain of its foreign and domestic affiliates. This expense is included in Service
fize expense in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss and 15 outlined below by affiliate:

Year Ended Year Ended

Aflilune Trmsfer pricing Metlodalogy December 31, 20122 December 31, 2021

PIn Warows* $82,591. 992 SR8 230,747
PIL Cost Plus 10 12,485,339 12453,738
PRM Cosi Flus 3% 12,065,226 10,39%.272
PLCC Cost Flus 5% 2led 447 2,922 06
FIIL 9 bps on average AUM - 1,704,998
BFTC 2.28% of gross revenne 1,549,970 1,535,155
PIC 2 28% of gross revenue 134477 379500
PLA Cosl Flus 5% 926,426 H80.372
Total service fec cxpense paid to affiliates S112,121.877 S118565,008

* % by o Tived income AU 3 S bps om equities AUM, amd 3025 bys on glohal asset allocation AL

Intercompany Settlement

Duering the vear ended December 31, 2022, the Company received $62,097,0898 as a non-cash contribution-in-kind
from the Parcnt as a result of a group-wide exercise carned out by the Parent to reassign and seitle historical
intercompany balances between Putnam affiliatcs. The Company’s Contnibuted sumplus inercased and Accounts
pavable to Parent and affiliates, net decreased as a result of this transaction.

During the vear ended December 31, 2021, the Company received 29,701,233 as a non-cash contribution-im-kind
to the Parent as a result of a group-wide exercise camed out by the Parent to reassign and settle historical
intercompany balances between Putnam affiliates. The Company’s Contnibubed surplus inereased and Accounts
pavable o Parent and affiliates, net decreased as a result of these transactions.

Retirement Plan

The Company, the Parent, and affiliates of the Parent sponsor a tax-qualified 401(k) defined contribution
retirement plan {the "Plan™) covenng substantally all emplovees. Under this Plan, emplovees mav defer a
percentage of cligible compensation into the Plan, subject to certam hmitations, a portion of which is matched by
the Company. The Company also provides for an annual discretionary contribution as determined by the Parent’s
Board of Dircctors. For the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company 's share of the annual expense
to the Plan totaled $411.093 and $366,989, respectively, These amounts are included in Compensation and
benefits in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.

Capitalized Software

The Parent capitalizes certain costs related to software developed for intemal use as long-lived asscts. The
amortization expense is allocated to cach subsidiary of the Parent. by PUSH 1. based on the subsidian's usage

of each capitalized software project. These costs were amortized on a straight-line basiz over the lesser of five
vears of the cstimated useful life. Overall amortization expense allocated to the Company duning the vears ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021 was 1,953 381 and 51,706,656, respectively, and 15 ncluded in Allocated expenses
from Parent and affiliates, net in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Dealer Commissions
The Company pand to a broker/dealer, affibated wath the Parent, distnbution costs for the sales of certain share
classes of the Company Funds pursuant to the contractual agreement. For the vears ended December 31, 2022 and

22
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2021, the Company paid the affiliated brokeridealer $3,694,906 and 52,382,833, This charge is included in Dealer
commussions in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Equity Incentive Compensation

The Parent sponsors the EIP. Cenain cmplovees of the Company are eligible to participate in the EIP, under
which they are cligible to receve restncted shares of the Parent’s Class B common shares and Class B stock
aptions,

The Parent recognizes ¢xpense for awards granted under the EIP over the stated vesting period and based on the
grant date fair value of the award. A portion of these expenses is allocated 1o the Company in a manner consistent
with the grant of such share-based payments.

The Company accounts for the awards issued under the EIP as equity awards in accordance with the IFRS 2
guidance related to share-based pavment transactions amang group entitics. The Company receives the serviees of
the emplovees granted the share awards, but has no obhigation to settle the share awards. That obligation belongs
o the Parent.

The Company has emplovess who were granted restricted Class B common shares of the Parent pursuant to the
EIP. The Company was also allocated a portion of the compensation charged fo the Parent. The fair market value
of the Class B common shares was determined using both the market and income valuation approaches as
outlined in the EIP, which includes consideration of the mnge of values determined by a nationally recognized
mdependent valuabion firm chosen by the EIP Committee. Compensation expense for these awards 15 being
amortized over the vesting penod of up to five vears. Compensation expense directly charged to the Company for
the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 was 51151115 and 52,592,294, respectively, and 15 included in
Compensation and benefits in the Statements of Lozs and Comprehensive Loss. Compensation expense allocaned
1o the Company for the vears ended Decembier 31, 2022 and 2021 was S6%9 107 and 5682 675 respectively, and 15
included in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,
Az of December 31, 2022, there was $4,407 818 of unrecognized compensation expense related to the Company’s
pormion of restricted Class B common shares, The weighted average penod over which that expense is expected o
be recogmzed is 3 43 vears.

Restricted Class B Shares
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 For the Year Ended Decomber 31, 2021

Welghied Average Weighted Average

Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Sharcs Fair Value
Umvesicd balance at Jamary | 338175 £14.27 47,896 513,79
Granted 146,330 1201 103, 164 16,54
WVested {73.139) 13.87 {216,200} 1442
Transfemed 40000 16.54 — —
Forfciied (35.970) 14, 16 {21,684y 1332
Umvesied balance at December 31 3THARG 51351 338,175 51427

Key Managemeni Compensation

key management of the Company mcludes certain exccutives of the Parent that have the authonty and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activitics of the Company. The individuals that comprise
the key management personncl are the Board of Dircctors, as well as cenain key management and officers. A
pormion of the compensation eamed by these individuals 15 allocated to the Company on the same basis as the
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other expense allocations from the Parent and 15 included in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net on
the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss as follows:

For ihe Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Salary 5428 266 SHIR 008
Share-based compensaiion 914,402 757,19
Ammmial non-share-bascd incentive compensation 2340, 788 2565600
Al saher conspensation 10642 112643
Total compensation 53695098 53667663

Allocated Expenses from Parent and affiliates, net

The Company shares office facilitics, personnel and other arrangements further described in this note with other
subsidiancs of the Parent. Accordinglv, the related costs of such armangements have been allocated by the Parent
and by affiliates among the vanous subsidiaries in a manner which management beheves s representative of the
actual costs mcurred. This includes the costs associated with capitalized software and key management
compensation as disclosed above, Additionally, in the course of the Company's day-to-day busincss operations
certain personnel from other subsidiancs of the Parent are utilized to support the Company, the related costs of
which have been allocated to the Company, in a manner which management belicves s representative of actual
costs incurred. The Company also allocates cerain of its own costs among various affiliates in a manner which
management believes is representative of the actual costs incurred.

During the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company was allocated 530,334,253 and 526,834,562
of costz, respectively, as outlined below. These charges ane included in Allocated expenses Ffrom Parent and
affiliates, net in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Faor the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Dogember 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

General & Admimstrsmve Expense from PUSH | S27.054.174 $24.234 802

Global Investmend Strategics Expense from PRM 2363000 1,975,014

Defined Conmribution Operations Expense from PSERY BRT079 BOT 054

Instatutional Expeiss o PRM — (243,188

Total Allocated expenses from Parent and affilutes, net 530,334,253 526,834,562
24
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11, Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenscs consist of the following:
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Facility maantenance & utilitics SIE1TY SHI4 148
Industry dues & filing fees 30,919 235307
Travel & Enteriainment 361,842 92,697
Lease deprecialion expenss - propeny 2071 204,303
Dreprecution of capilal msels 4,200 4,200
Lease depreciation expense - cquipmenl 1698 5149
Femt 31563 —
Miscellaneous olher operiling expeises RiMLG6T J93.650
Total other operating expenses SE191,159 51449574

12, Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Unrealized Forcign Exchange gain/{loss) on
Translation of Forcign Operations, net

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Balance, beginning of vear {57,649, 130) (57 446.988)
Chleer comprehensive gam loss) for the vear, net of incoms fax 345094 (202,142)
Balance, end of year (57, 304.030) (57.640,130)

13, Commutments and Contingencies

Claims, Lowsiiis, Provisions ang Clither Conmtingencies

From time to tme, the Company is subject to legal actions, including class actions, ansing in the normal course of
business. I is not expected that any of these legal actions will have a matenal adverse effeet on the financial
position of the Company.

In addition, the Company reccives inquinies, including requests for documents and information, in the
course of its business from vanious state and federal regulators inguining about certain of the Company s
pelicies and procedures. Each of these matters is handled in the ordinary course of business. The
Company fully responds to these requests and fullv cooperates with all regulatory inguinies, and there ane
no such matters pending that the Company belicves could have a matenal adverse offect on its results of
operations, cash flows or financial position.

14, Capital Management

The Parent momitors the amount of consoldated capital avalable, and the amounts deploved m its vanous
operating subsidianes, including the Company, The amount of capital deploved in any particular company or
country is dependent upon local regulatory requirements as well as the Parcnt’s interal assessment of capital
requirements in the context of its operational rsks and requirements and strategic plans. The Parent’s practice is
o mantain the Company’s capitalization at a level that will exceed the relevant munimum regulatory capatal
requirements in the junisdictions in which they operate.

The Company must maintain minimuam member’s equity of $1,000,000 in certain junisdictions subject to ules
under the Emplovee Retirement Income Sccurity Act (“ERISA™). Dunng the vears ended December 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively, the Company was in comphanes with all mimimium capital requircinnents.

23
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15, Risk Management

The Company has policies relating to the identification, measurement, monitonng, mitigating and controlling of
risks associated with financial instruments. The kev nsks related to financial instruments are credit sk, liguidity

nisk and marker nsk {(currengy,
manages each of these nsks.

interest rate and equity). The following sections describe how the Company

Management 15 responsible for establishing capital management procedures for implementing and monitonng the
capital plan. The Board of Dircctors of the Parent reviews and approves all material capital tranzactions

undertaken by management

(a) Credit Risk

Credit nsk 15 the nsk for financial loss resulting from the failure of debtors making payments when due. The
Company regularly reviews its eredit exposure from each counterparty. The Company monitors its credit risk
management policies continwously 1o cvaluate their effectivencss. These policics inclede, but ane not limited
to, dealing only with creditworthy counterparties, and obtaning sufficient collateral, where appropnate. as a
means of mitigatng the nsk of financial loss from defaults. The maximum eredit exposure 15 the camang
value of the assets on the Balance Sheets, net of any allowances for losses. There are no allowanees for vears
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,

{b) Liguidity Risk
Liquidity nisk 15 the nsk that the Company will not be able to meet all cash cutflow obligations as they come
dm, The fallowing policics and procedures are in place to manage this nsk:
The Company closely manages operating liquidity through cash flow matching of asscts and habilitics
«  The Company has the financial support of its Parent. which maintains a $300,000,000 sevolving credit
agreement with a consorium of banks,
*  The Company does not have a significam amount of financial assets that are past duc at December 31,
2022,
+  The Company anticipates that its financial liabilitics will matre within the next fiscal vear,

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into contracts that give rige 1o commitments of fulure
minimum pavments that impact short-term and long-tenm hguidity.

Pavimgnts duc by vear as of Deccmber 31, 2022

Total 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Thercalter

Leases S234600 5134610 — — 5— — £—

Paymenis due by vear as of December 31, 2021

Total 2022 23 Hrxd4 25 NI Thercalter

Leases SHGTETY 5234857 5133017 S S S S

{c} Market Risk

Market nisk 15 the nsk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result
of changes in market factors. Market factors include three tvpes of nisks: curreney nisk. interest rate nsk. and
cquity nisk.

(1) Currency Risk
Currency risk relates 1o the Company operating in different currengigs and converting non US, dollar
camings at differcat points i tme at different foreign exchanpe levels when adverse changes i foreign

26
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curreney exchange mtes occur. The Company’s financial instruments are generally denominated o ULS.
dollars and do not have sigmificant exposure to changes in forcign exchange mtes.

(1) Interest Rate Risk

Initerest eate fsk exists of asset and habilitv cash fows are not closely matched, and interest rates change
causing a difference in value between the asset and liability. The Company. through mstruction from the
Parcnt, monitors interest rate nsk by regularly assessing this nsk and establishing policies and practices o
protect against the adverse effects of these potential exposures. The Company’s primary ¢xposures to
interest rate risk anse from foe revenue camed by the Company that is dependent on the debt portfolios of
Putnam sponsored funds, and from its investment in the subordinated debt of the Putnam-sponsored CLO.
A one pereent increase or decrease i the vield of these funds would have resulted in a change innet loss of
approcamately 313,000 and $925,000 for the vears cnded December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively,

(1) Equity Risk

Equity nsk 15 the unccrmanty associated with the valuation of assets ansing from changes in cquity markets.
The Company through mstruction from the Parent has mvestment policy guidelines in place that provide for
prudent investment in equity markets with cleardy defined limits to mitigate price nsk. The Company’s
primary exposure to cquity nisk arises from fee revenue camed by the Company that is dependent on the
cquity porifolios of PIM sponsored funds and PAC institutional clients. A ten percent increase or decrease
in equity markets would have resulted in a change i net loss of approximately 54 838 000 and 53,776,000
for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

16, Subsequent Events
The Company evaluated subsequent cvents and transactions occurring afier December 31, 2022 through May 25,
2023, the date these financial statements were authonzed for issue.

Effective January 1, 2023, pursuant to a new transfer pricing agreement between the Company, PUSH |, and the
Parent, the Company will be allocated G&A expenses inclusive of a 7% mark up. This agreement replaces the
Iistorie GéA expense allocation summanized i Note 10 for Allocated Expenses from Parent and Affiliates, net
within the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.

The Company 15 not aware of any other subsequent events which would require recogmition or disclosure in the
financial statements.

27
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MaplesFS Limited

2023 500,000 7,310

State Street Bank and Trust Campany

2023 242.0 5,380

225

State Street Cayman Trust Company Ltd.
CIMA

500,000

P.0. Box 31113 SMB
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2022 12 10,240,000 14 9,709
132781 1998

2023 1,350

2023 17,710

Putnam International Distributors,Ltd.

2023 81,439,664 119 648
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Report of independent auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putnam
Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and to MaplesFS Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putnam
Diversified Income Trust (Cayman)

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman)
(comprised of Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and Putnam Diversified Income Trust
(Cayman)) (collectively the "Fund"), which comprise the combined statements of financial position as of April 30, 2023
and 2022, and the related combined statements of comprehensive income (loss), of changes in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred
to asthe "financial statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of the
Fund as of April 30, 2023 and 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Fund and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsihilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue as a going
concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we;

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on atest basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosuresin the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Fund' s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the
Manager's Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider
whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial statements, or the other
information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an
uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
August 2, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Officers of
The Puthnam Advisory Company, LLC:

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Putham Advisory Company, LLC (the "Company"), which comprise
the balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of loss and comprehensive |oss,
changes in member’'s equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements

(collectively referred to asthe "financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Notes 1, 2, and 10, the Company has significant transactions with its Parent and its affiliates. These
financial statements may not necessarily be indicative of the financial position or the results of operations had the

Company been operated as an unaffiliated company. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will aways detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by areasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
I dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on atest basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financia statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

May 25, 2023
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